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=MFHENJMJ;G@HEKG FEF?@DEJG?EHJGG <GFHJRJFEG>JBFDGJFHH9 
BEDFGDNFKMEJ<GFH N@FH@FGEJBDGCDE?? FEG>JGDJJGGJFEG 

DGIFDHJ=GGFJKNEKG 
GFJ<GFH 

<7:=JJK;JQECEKG? JKJLJGFJGEEJM;C; ?KGECDFGEHJ=HCELDF ?G@HEKG?J?MGDEH A=HCELDFJ:B FLG@EJ=ELJGKJGEE ECFNJKFGJGKJ?MGDE? JK;NLJQECEKG? =MFHENJMJ<GFHJ: <7:=JQECEKG? IJHHJNEEGJGDJECMEEH NCFNJKFGJGK?: NCFN?:J MEFDGED
 
AEDFGDNFKME
 DFDCEGR8NL: GFDCEG?: 

?FJJGGJFEG>JLE?MDJLE 
NFFGDG?J;MEGGHJHJHH 
DFIE 

JK;JFHHGIEHJGIG 
?AEMJFH 
FHNJKJ?GDFGJGK?JGF 
GEEJ?KGECDFGEH 
=HCELDFJECFNJJK 
AHFMEJGFJGEEJKEIED 
CCJ=HCELDFJECFN: 
=HHJ?G@HEKG?JGFIJKC 
GEJ?JECFNJEFH 
DEMEJ@EHJFJFFJHJKC 
CDFHEJFKHJIEDEJKGG 
FJD?GJGJNEJGE?G 
GFIED?:J 

JGJEFFGDG?JIJHHJLE 
@KHEDGFIEKJF?JGEJ? 
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FHNJKJ?GEDEH:J 
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=MFHENJMJ<GFHJ<
 

=MFHENJMJ<GFHJN
 

=MFHENJMJ<GFHJJ
 

<EGNEGD9 
ECFNJKFGJGKJ?MGDE? 
IJHHJNEEGJGDJECMEEH 
MEFDGED 
AEDFGDNFKME 
GFDCEG?: 

<7:=JJK;JQECEKG? 
>J@JKCJNK@JDGKNEKG 
ECFNJKFGJGKJ?MGDE? 
IJHHJNEEGJGDJECMEEH 
MEFDGED 
AEDFGDNFKME 
GFDCEG?: 

<7:=JJK;JQECEKG? 
<HGLFHJMJ?GGD9JO 
<EGCDFAE9 
ECFNJKFGJGKJ?MGDE? 
IJHHJNEEGJGDJECMEEH 
MEFDGED 
AEDFGDNFKME 
GFDCEG?: 

JK;NLJQECEKG?
 
NCFNJKFGJGK?:
 

CGFH: 
<7LJGFJGEEJM;C; 
?G@HEKG?J?MGDEH 
FLG@EJ=ELJGKJGEE 
<7:=JQECEKG? 
NCFN?:J 

DFDCEGR87L: 

NKLJGFJGEEJM;C; 
?G@HEKG?J?MGDEH 
FLG@EJ=ELJGKJGEE JK;NLJQECEKG? <7:=JQECEKG? NCFNJKFGJGK?: NCFN?:J 

DFDCEGR8=L: 

<8LJGFJGEEJM;C; 
?G@HEKG?J?MGDEH 
FLG@EJ=ELJGKJGEE JK;NLJQECEKG? <7:=JQECEKG? NCFNJKFGJGK?: NCFN?:J 

DFDCEGR87L: 

J9=
 

MEFHGEJ;MJEKME? 
EF?JEKHJ?GEH 
MGKGEKGJ?AEMJFJM 
?@AAGDGJFDGNJNDJEJ: 
PMCN;JGKJFK 
GKCGJKCJLF?J?:JDEE 
>NJB>CJIJHHJIGDIJGG 
FHJCKJM@DDJM@H@N 
FKHJJNADG@E 
GEFMEJKCJFKH 
HEFDKJKCJJKJGDHEDJGG 
?JCKJFJMFKGH9JJNAFMG 
G@GMGNE?: 

DEEJ;MEGGHJFH?GJEF? 
FJMGKGJK@G@? 
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FJNEHJFGJJNADG@JKC 
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M@HG@DEJJKJGDHEDJGG 
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MGKGEKGJ?AEMJFJM 
?@AAGDGJFDGNJNDJEJ: 
PMCN;JGKJFK 
GKCGJKCJLF?J?:JDEE 
<HGLFHJB>CJIJHH 
IGDIJGGJFHJCK 
M@DDJM@H@NJFKH 
JNADG@EJGEFMEJKC 
FKHJHEFDKJKCJJK 
GDHEDJGG 
?JCKJFJMFKGH9JJNAFMG 
G@GMGNE?: 

DEEJ;MEGGHJFH?GJEF? 
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AG?JGJ@EH9JJNAFMG 
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=MFHENJMJ<GFHJ=
 

<7:=JJK;JQECEKG? 
=HCELDFJ<9DDJC 
ECFNJKFGJGKJ?MGDE? 
IJHHJNEEGJGDJECMEEH 
MEFDGED 
AEDFGDNFKME 
GFDCEG?: 

<7:=JJK;JQECEKG? 
G;JMJ?GGD9JO 
<G@EDKNEKG 
ECFNJKFGJGKJ?MGDE? 
IJHHJNEEGJGDJECMEEH 
MEFDGED 
AEDFGDNFKME 
GFDCEG?:J 

<<LJGFJGEEJM;C; 
?G@HEKG?J?MGDEH 
FLG@EJ=ELJGKJGEE 
<7:=JQECEKG? 
ECFN?:J 
DFDCEGRE7L 

PDEEJGDJCJKFHJCGFH JK;NLJQECEKG? 
IF?JKGGJ?EGJFDG@KH NCFNJKFGJGK?: 
CGNNGKJCGDE:JDEE 
CGNNGKJCGDE 
DE?@HG?JFDEI 

=HC:J?JCCRJJ<L 
=HC:J??JCCRJ<JL 

=KLJGFJGEEJM;C; 
?G@HEKG?J?MGDEH 
FLG@EJ=ELJGKJGEE JK;NLJQECEKG? <7:=JQECEKG? NCFNJKFGJGK?: NCFN?: 

DFDCEGR8EL: 

MEFHGEJ;MJEKME? 
EF?JEKHJ?GEH 
MGKGEKGJ?AEMJFJM 
?@AAGDGJFDGNJNDJEJ: 
PMCN;JGKJFK 
GKCGJKCJLF?J?:JDEE 
FFGEJB>CJIJHHJIGDI 
GGJFHJCKJM@DDJM@H@N 
FKHJJNADG@E 
GEFMEJKCJFKH 
HEFDKJKCJJKJGDHEDJGG 
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DEEJ;MEGGHJFH?GJEF? 
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M@DDJM@H@NJFKH 
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GDHEDJGG 
?JCKJFJMFKGH9JJNAFMG 
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DEEJ;MEGGHJFH?GJEF? 
FJMGKGJK@G@? 
JNADG@ENEKGJAHFK 
FJNEHJFGJJNADG@JKC 
?MEGGHJFGGEKHFKME> 
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CGNNGKJCGDE:JDEE 
CGNNGKJCGDE 
DE?@HG?JFDEI 

CCJN>=RJ8KL 

JK;NLJQECEKG?
 
NCFNJKFGJGK?:
 

FEGJFKHJECMEEHEH 
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GEFMEJKCJFKH 
HEFDKJKCJJKJGDHEDJGG 
?JCKJFJMFKGH9JJNAFMG 
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DEEJ;MEGGHJFH?GJEF? 
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AFDGJMJAFGJKCJJKJGEE 
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DGIFDHJ=GGFJKNEKG 
GFJ<GFH 

<GFHJRJFEG>JBFDGJFHH9 
FEG>JGDJJGGJFEG 

?FJJGGJFEG>JLE?MDJLE 
NFFGDG?J;MEGGHJHJHH 
DFIE 

f234211
 



=MFHENJMJ<GFHJ<J
 

=MFHENJMJ<GFHJ<E
 

=MFHENJMJ<GFHJ<=
 

=MFHENJMJ<GFHJ<8
 

=MFHENJMJ<GFHJ<K
 

=MFHENJMJ<GFHJ<;
 

=MFHENJMJ<GFHJN7
 

BFCEJ< 

s]JRQSWa_-WU_RaW[JSRW[T 

cd\ef\gJLHMNHOPPJUMhiHjJWGGikFlOFGJMmJRHNiFk.iGkMFioJSMioP
 

MDCJ<GFHJ:
 

MDCFKJ3FGJGKFHJ<GFH 
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;G@HEKGJ?FGJ?FFMGJGK =KK@FHJ?FGJ?FFMGJGK MDCJ<GFHJJ IJHHJLEJDEFHJ3EH: ?@D@E9: 
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MDCJ<GFHJ:: 
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?9?GENJ?GJGEFGJJG
 
HJDEMGH9JGJE?
 
GG9DEAGDG?J;NL
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LGGEJGECGJFKHJF
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GEFGJIJHHJNFCJNJ3E F??EG?: DEAGDGJKC>JL@?JKE??> 
GEEJ?MEGGHm?JFLJHJG9 A@DMEF?JKC>JAF9DGHH> 
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C@JHEHJKE?JJK MGKGDFMGGD?>JFKHJFHH 

i234211
 



DGJ@?EJGEEJLE?G 
F@FJHFLHE 
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FGDJFK9J@KL@HCEGEH 
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RJKFKMJFHJ<GFHJE EMGKGNJMFHH9 
?@?GFJKFLHE 
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EFGHIJKJELMNFOPGQHNRJMNHJSTPUO
 
CDEFGEHIJ789:;9<7:= 

>F?GJ@AHFGEHIJ789<79<7:= 

BFCEJ: 

FGHIHJGIKLMHNOPQIRGOHL 
STGULGHNOPQIRGOHLGULPVWXGPVYLONLZ[[LJTIPRVPLUJTOOKU\L]PO^GYVLRTVLNOKKO_GH`LQVIUXPVULONLNGUJIK 
aVPNOPQIHJVLONLRTVLJTIPRVPLUJTOOKLGHLZaaVHYGbLcLdSORIKLebaVHYGRXPVULIHYLZYQGHGURPIRG^V 

ebaVHYGRXPVUL]VPLfTGKYgh 
J 

VWJXYGZUJELMNFOPGQHNRJ[NHJSTPUO 

DEJFFGF@GFGEJ\XYGZUJELMNFOPGQHNRJMNHJSTPUO]JGFHEJGEGFGJEIAEJHKG@DE?JLMDENJGOEJ@JF@HKGEHJ<7:PQ:= 
RFOEH@GEJEMJS@JFGKEJFGJTIAEJ?E?UJFJHJHKVKHEJWXJGOEJXEFDJEJHJSDTJ?G@HEJGJEJDEGGNEJGYJLMJGECED?JNJGXY 
OEJHEGGFDJ?KCJ?JEDJFENNF?UY 

NOPQRSSTUQSVWXOYZ[PVOWSOWSPUQS\]UQ^_`QSOXSa_W]PVOW[`SbcdQWeQeSOWSd[fQeSghigjSOXSPUQ 
k_^VPSl_V^QS][WSUQ`dSe]UOO`eS`O][PQSPUQS[ZO_WPeSPOS_eQSVWSPUQSPmOSdQYSd_dV`S][`]_`[PVOWeR 
UPPdRnnmmmodhpoWqeQ^ofOrnde]nk_^VPl_V^QoUPZ` 
J 

>KJEJ:IJDEGFGJTIAEJHKG@DE? =8PQP8= 

>KJEJ<IJREFDJTJHJSDTJ?G@HEJGJEJDEGGNEJG PPP 

>KJEJ;IJSKVKHEJ>KJEJ:JWXJ>KJEJ< :P:TT 

^WJ_O`PFPRGHZGPaNJELMNFOPGQHNRJMNHJSTPUO 
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AEDJCOKGHWJMKD?GJabbJGECEGOEDJGOEJMEGGEXKJCI 

:YJDFHEJGOEJDEGEVFJGJAEDGKEJJMDENJGOEJYAED?EJJEGJ?EDVKFE?JFE?GZJDEXJFJHJGOEJYNFJFCENEJGJFJH 
CEJEDFGZJFEG@NJJLMDENJGOEJ@JF@HKGEHJ<7:PQ:=JRFOEH@GEJEMJS@JFGKEJFGJTIAEJ?E?U 

<YJVJXJFEJGDFFGEHJFHNKJK?GDFGKVE9NFJFCENEJGJMEEJAFKHJGEJEGOEDJEDCFJK[FGKEJ?JEDJFEDAEDFGKEJ? 

;YJDFHEJGOEJGEGFGJMDENJFWEVEJFJHJHKVKHEJKGJWXJGOEJXEFDQEJHJSDTJEJDEGGNEJGYJJDOEJDEGEVFJGJAEDGKEJJGOFG 
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HEALTH SCIENCES CHARTER SCHOOL
�

FILL IN GRAY CELLS 

$7,974,940 $8,266,177 

Unrestricted  $(615,021)

Temporarily restricted  -
TOTAL NET ASSETS  $(615,021)  $(598,996) 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS  $8,143,927 $8,599,620 

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
�

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 and 2015 

2016 2015 
ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents  $577,222 

Grants and contracts receivable  -
Accounts receivables  -
Inventory  -
Prepaid Expenses  42,387 

Contributions and other receivables  -

Other  8,845 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS  $628,454 $687,179 


$495,629 
-

133,554 
-

49,151 
-

8,845 

OTHER ASSETS 
Investments  $-
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net  7,497,165 

Other - Loan acquisition costs, net  18,308 
OTHER ASSETS  $7,515,473 $7,912,441 

TOTAL ASSETS  $8,143,927 $8,599,620 

$-
7,886,557 

25,884 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 
CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses  $526,011 

Accrued payroll and benefits  -
Refundable Advances  -

Dreferred Revenue  -
Current maturities of long-term debt  132,611 

Short Term Debt - Bonds, Notes Payable  -

Other  125,386 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES  $784,008 


$635,882 
-
-

38,560 
132,611 

-

125,386 

$932,439 

LONG-TERM DEBT, net current maturities

TOTAL LIABILITIES  $8,758,948 $9,198,616 

NET ASSETS 
 $(598,996) 

-

Check  - -



     

   
  

     

      

      
              
              
            
             
             
            
          

             
               

  
   

           
           

           
             
   

            

          
            

            

  
          
          
          

          
           
           

           
            

         

           

            

           

  
 

Health Sciences Charter School 
STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 

FILL IN GRAY CELLS 

REVENUE, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT 
State & Local Operating Revenue $5,924,370 $- $5,924,370 $5,979,718 
Federal - Title and IDEA 239,000 - 239,000 227,587 
Federal - Other - - - -
State and City Grants - - - -
Contributions and private grants 221,135 - 221,135 227,521 
After school revenue 11,350 - 11,350 -
Other 60,841 - 60,841 253,023 

Food Service/Child Nutrition Program 277,168 - 277,168 192,693 
TOTAL REVENUE, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT $6,733,864 $- $6,733,864 $6,880,542 

EXPENSES 
Program Services 

Regular Education $2,286,820 $- $2,286,820 $3,209,699 
Special Education 289,115 - 289,115 431,842 

Other Programs 629,852 - 629,852 675,568 
Total Program Services $3,205,787 $- $3,205,787 $4,317,109 

Supporting Services 
Management and general $3,542,690 $- $3,542,690 $2,612,610 

Fundraising - - - -
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES $6,748,477 $- $6,748,477 $6,929,719 

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FROM SCHOOL OPERATIONS $(14,613) $- $(14,613) $(49,177) 

Contributions 
Foundations $- $- $- $-
Individuals - - - -
Corporations - 1,750 1,750 2,000 

Fundraising - 4,000 4,000 11,794 
Interest income - - - -
Miscellaneous income - - - -

Net assets released from restriction - (7,162) (7,162) (4,500) 
TOTAL SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE $- $(1,412) $(1,412) $9,294 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS $(14,613) $(1,412) $(16,025) $(39,883) 

NET ASSETS BEGINNING OF YEAR $(598,996) $- $(598,996) $(559,113) 

PRIOR YEAR/PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS - - - -

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $(613,609) $(1,412) $(615,021) $(598,996) 

2016 2015
�

Temporarily 
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total 
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DE6@E?GEHJFEHJ@ANOFHJGPEJQEHEAEEHEEGJF@HQGOD7?JDEAODGJFEHJQEGEDEFNJSOEGDON?JDEAODG?JF?JOEE 
SO58QEEHJMQNE9 

:FDEJ: 

RUVWWXJYLTQOJZPTULXJ[WFGLUGJ\F]WHSLGPWF 
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COEGFSGJGF5E 
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COEGFSGJK5FQN 
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COEGFSGJ:POEE 
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COEGFSGJGF5E 
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HEFD?JDODEQEDJDQGP 
FPQ?J@@HQGJ<QD5 

>@5?HEEJG 
HSCOD5QSEFJ>>: 

GEJ 

\]JM^^XPUL_XQ` 

J@G?O@DSEH 
<QEFESQFN 
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LbJGVQJPFOQ^QFOQFGJLNOPGWHcTJHQ^WHGJWFJ]PFLFUPLXJTGLGQSQFGTJLFOJFWGQTdJLFOJ 
_bJHQ^WHGTJWFJPFGQHFLXJUWFGHWXTJWeQHJ]PFLFUPLXJHQ^WHGPFfJLFOJUWS^XPLFUQ 

PGGA?I99E>?EHBS?OBDEAODG?9MN@QHDEKQEJ9SO595EHQF9F??EG?9?@DKE>B@ANOFH?9BC77:9=<<7L88B 
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LMNOPQRSMOpSqPrstuvtwrux 

yzpPMSS{O{|}M~P{Op�NP~{NOpSP�p~|�PNz|Q~SP�pPQR~|MSpSP{�PMRR~{�M�~p�P�~pMNpPp�R~M{}POzpP�pMN|}�N�P{�
OzpP{Op�NPM�pP}|OP{}�~QSpS�P��M�R~pNP�{�zOP{}�~QSpqPMP��{OOp}P�M}M�p�p}OP~pOOp�P�MNP}|OP{NNQpS�
OzpPN�z||~PS{SP}|OPp�Rp}SP�pSp�M~P�Q}SNP{}Pp��pNNP|�POzpP�{}�~pP�QS{OPyz�pNz|~SP|�P�s�r�rrr�POzp
�|��p�O{�pPM�O{|}PR~M}P�{~~P�pPNQ��{OOpSP��POzpP�|~~|�{}�PSMOpP�Nz|Q~SP�pP}|P~MOp�POzM}P�rPSM�NP��|�
OzpPNQ��{NN{|}P|�POzpP�pR|�O��PpO�� 

�M�pPu 

WXJYQFQZ[\[FGJ][GG[H 

�x|P�pNR|}Np� 

E^_RQFQGOPFJ`PHJFPGJa_RPQNOFZJGb[JYQFQZ[\[FGJ][GG[HX 

yzpPMQS{OP{NP}|OP�|�R~pOpPMOPOzpPO{�pP|�POz{NPNQ��{NN{|}� 

cXJSPH\Jdde 

�x|P�pNR|}Np� 

E^_RQFQGOPFJ`PHJFPGJa_RPQNOFZJGb[JSPH\JddeX 

yzpPy|��PvvrP{NP}|OP�|�R~pOpPMOPOzpPO{�pP|�POz{NPNQ��{NN{|}� 

fXJS[N[HQRJgOFZR[JMaNOG 

x|OpqP�P�|R�P|�POzpPypSp�M~P�{}�~pP�QS{OP�QNOP�pP�{~pSP�{OzPOzpPypSp�M~P�QS{OPz~pM�{}�z|QNp�PP�~pMNp 
�p�p�PO|P{|}P~}{�|��P�Q{Sp~{}pNP�|�POzpP�pSp�M~P�{~{}�P�p�Q{�p�p}ON� 
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New York State Education Department
�
Request for Proposals to Establish Charter Schools Authorized by the 


Board of Regents
�

2015-16 Budget & Cash Flow Template 

General Instructions and Notes for New Application Budgets and Cash Flows Templates
�

1 
2 

3 

4 

5 

Complete ALL SIX columns in BLUE 
Enter information into the GRAY cells 

Cells containing RED triangles in the upper right corner in columns B through G contain guidance on 
that particular item 

Funding by School District information for all NYS School district is located on the State Aid website 
at https://stateaid.nysed.gov/charter/. Refer to this website for per-pupil tuition funding for all school 
districts. Rows may be inserted in the worksheet to accomodate additional districts if necessary. 

The Assumptions column should be completed for all revenue and expense items unless the item is 
self-explanatory. Where applicable, please reference the page number or section in the application 
narrative that indicates the assumption being made. For instance, student enrollment would 
reference the applicable page number in Section I, C of the application narrative. 
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HEALTH SCIENCES CHARTER SCHOOL 
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2016-2017 Assumptions 

July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017 DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

OTHER FUNDRAISING TOTAL 

Total Revenue 6,030,085 684,082 46,000 - 200,000 6,960,167 

Total Expenses 2,981,562 351,540 361,928 33,500 2,973,976 6,702,506 

Net Income 3,048,523 332,542 (315,928) (33,500) (2,773,976) 257,661 

Actual Student Enrollment 394 56 -

Total Paid Student Enrollment - - -

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

OTHER FUNDRAISING TOTAL 

REVENUE 

REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 

Per Pupil Revenue 

District of Location $12,505.00 5,514,705 671,726 - - - 6,186,431 

School District 2 - Other districts - outside Buffalo $10,750.00 96,750 8,486 - - - 105,236 

School District 3 (Enter Name) - - - - - -

School District 4 (Enter Name) - - - - - -

School District 5 (Enter Name) - - - - - -

5,611,455 680,212 6,291,667 

Special Education Revenue - - - - - -

Grants 

Stimulus - - - - - -

Other - - - - - -

Other State Revenue 189,630 3,870 - - - 193,500 Supplemental aid for Charter schools included in NYS budget at $430 per student 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES 5,801,085 684,082 6,485,167 

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING 

IDEA Special Needs - - - - - -

Title I 208,000 - - - - 208,000 

Title Funding - Other - - - - - -

School Food Service (Free Lunch) - - - - - -

Grants 

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation - - - - - -

Other - - - - - -

Other Federal Revenue - - - - - -

TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES 208,000 208,000 

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE 

Contributions and Donations, Fundraising - - 25,000 - - 25,000 In-kind services - nursing 

Erate Reimbursement - - 21,000 - - 21,000 

Interest Income, Earnings on Investments, - - - - - -

NYC-DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Developmt.) - - - - - -

Food Service (Income from meals) - - - - 200,000 200,000 Food service 

Text Book - - - - - -

Other Local Revenue 21,000 - - - - 21,000 Reimbursement(s) from Buffalo Urban League after-school program 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES 21,000 46,000 200,000 267,000 

TOTAL REVENUE 6,030,085 684,082 46,000 200,000 6,960,167 

List exact titles and staff FTE"s ( Full time eqiuilivalent) 

EXPENSES 

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS No. of Positions 

Executive Management 1.00 - - - - 145,963 145,963 Principal 

Instructional Management 2.00 - - - - 281,008 281,008 Director of Curriculum; 2 Assistant Principals 

Deans, Directors & Coordinators 1.00 - - - - 66,435 66,435 Dean of Students 

CFO / Director of Finance 1.00 - - - - 119,760 119,760 Director of Finance & Operations 

Operation / Business Manager 1.00 - - - - 80,215 80,215 Controller 

Administrative Staff 4.00 - - - - 186,246 186,246 CIO; Business Clerk; Executive Assistant to Principal; Receptionist 

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 10 879,627 879,627 

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 

Teachers - Regular 22.30 1,010,317 - - - - 1,010,317 GenEd Teachers 

Teachers - SPED 6.00 - 275,333 - - - 275,333 SpEd Teachers 

Substitute Teachers 2.00 48,720 - - - - 48,720 Building-based Substitute Teachers 

Teaching Assistants - - - - - - -

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL 

CY Per Pupil Rate 
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HEALTH SCIENCES CHARTER SCHOOL 
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2016-2017 Assumptions 

July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017 DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

OTHER FUNDRAISING TOTAL 

Total Revenue 6,030,085 684,082 46,000 - 200,000 6,960,167 

Total Expenses 2,981,562 351,540 361,928 33,500 2,973,976 6,702,506 

Net Income 3,048,523 332,542 (315,928) (33,500) (2,773,976) 257,661 

Actual Student Enrollment 394 56 -

Total Paid Student Enrollment - - -

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

OTHER FUNDRAISING TOTAL 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL 

Specialty Teachers 9.00 427,851 - - - - 427,851 Spanish, Physical Ed, Health, Art, ELL, Business Teachers 

Aides - - - - - - -

Therapists & Counselors 3.00 - - 155,249 - - 155,249 Guidance Counselors; Social Worker 

Other 1.00 42,642 - - - - 42,642 Internship Coordinator 

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL 43 1,529,529 275,333 155,249 1,960,111 

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 

Nurse - - - - - - -

Librarian - - - - - - -

Custodian 1.00 - - - - 48,541 48,541 Facilities Manager 

Security 2.00 - - - - 90,915 90,915 Monitors 

Other 1.00 - - - - 32,799 32,799 Guidance Secretary/Clerk 

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL 4 172,255 172,255 

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 57 1,529,529 275,333 155,249 1,051,882 3,011,994 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 

Payroll Taxes 139,952 25,193 14,205 - 96,247 275,597 

Fringe / Employee Benefits 152,953 27,533 15,525 - 105,188 301,199 

Retirement / Pension 84,124 15,143 8,539 - 57,854 165,660 

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 377,029 67,870 38,269 259,289 742,456 

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 1,906,558 343,203 193,518 1,311,172 3,754,450 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

Accounting / Audit - - - - 18,000 18,000 Audit/Tax Fees 

Legal - - - - 10,000 10,000 Legal Fees 

Management Company Fee - - - - - -

Nurse Services - - - - - -

Food Service / School Lunch - - - - 219,325 219,325 Food Service 

Payroll Services - - - - 50,000 50,000 Payroll/HR Fees 

Special Ed Services - - - - - -

Titlement Services (i.e. Title I) - - - - - -

Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting 
2,250 - 33,500 33,500 32,000 101,250 

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES 2,250 33,500 33,500 329,325 398,575 

SCHOOL OPERATIONS 

Board Expenses - - - - 1,000 1,000 

Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials 59,030 - - - - 59,030 

Special Ed Supplies & Materials - 8,338 - - - 8,338 

Textbooks / Workbooks 10,000 - - - - 10,000 

Supplies & Materials other - - - - 23,500 23,500 

Equipment / Furniture - - - - - -

Telephone 24,000 - - - - 24,000 

Technology 192,670 - - - - 192,670 

Student Testing & Assessment 1,000 - - - - 1,000 

Field Trips 17,500 - - - - 17,500 MASH Camps; Honors Trip; Spanish Class Trip 

Transportation (student) - - 5,000 - - 5,000 Internship Transportation 

Student Services - other 
149,718 - 113,910 - - 263,628 

Office Expense - - - - 59,000 59,000 Postage; Prinitng 

Staff Development 53,200 - - - - 53,200 

Staff Recruitment 6,970 - - - - 6,970 

Student Recruitment / Marketing - - 15,000 - - 15,000 

School Meals / Lunch - - 1,000 - - 1,000 

IT Services; Grant Writing Services; Community Relations Fees; Professional Fee In-
kind; Public Relations; Expulsion Fees; Other 

Student Recognition; Clubs; Uniforms; Graduation; Athletics; Summer School; After-
School Program 
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HEALTH SCIENCES CHARTER SCHOOL 
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2016-2017 Assumptions 

July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017 DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

OTHER FUNDRAISING TOTAL 

Total Revenue 6,030,085 684,082 46,000 - 200,000 6,960,167 

Total Expenses 2,981,562 351,540 361,928 33,500 2,973,976 6,702,506 

Net Income 3,048,523 332,542 (315,928) (33,500) (2,773,976) 257,661 

Actual Student Enrollment 394 56 -

Total Paid Student Enrollment - - -

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

OTHER FUNDRAISING TOTAL 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL 

Travel (Staff) 11,000 - - - - 11,000 NAF 

Fundraising - - - - - -

Other 
124,917 - - - 43,852 168,769 

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS 650,004 8,338 134,910 127,352 920,604 

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 

Insurance - - - - 42,000 42,000 

Janitorial - - - - 131,500 131,500 

Building and Land Rent / Lease - - - - 661,610 661,610 

Repairs & Maintenance - - - - 148,500 148,500 

Equipment / Furniture - - - - - -

Security - - - - 19,500 19,500 

Utilities - - - - 97,329 97,329 

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 1,100,439 1,100,439 

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION 422,750 - - - 105,687 528,437 

DISSOLUTION ESCROW & RESERVES / CONTIGENCY - - - - - -

TOTAL EXPENSES 2,981,562 351,540 361,928 33,500 2,973,976 6,702,506 

NET INCOME 3,048,523 332,542 (315,928) (33,500) (2,773,976) 257,661 

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries* 

District of Location 384 54 438 

School District 2 - Other districts - outside Buffalo 10 2 12 

School District 3 (Enter Name) -

School District 4 (Enter Name) -

School District 5 (Enter Name) -

TOTAL ENROLLMENT 394 56 450 

REVENUE PER PUPIL 15,305 12,216 102 

EXPENSES PER PUPIL 7,567 6,278 804 

Substitute Teachers; Americorp; Interest; Bank Charges; Memberships; Teacher 
Leader Stipends; Miscellaneous 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

TOTAL 
ENROLLED 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

The Board of Trustees 
Health Sciences Charter School 

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Health Sciences Charter School (the School) as of June 30, 
2016 and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the 
financial statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to a financial audit contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of 
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we 
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and 
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the School as of June 30, 2016 and the changes in its net assets and cash flows for the years then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 



2015 Financial Statements 

The financial statements of the School as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015 were audited by other 
auditors whose report dated October 29, 2015 expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements. 

Additional Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The 
accompanying schedule of expenses is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of 
the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.  Such 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and 
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, 
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America.  In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial 
statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 5, 2016 on our 
consideration of the School’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other matters.  The purpose of that 
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the School's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

October 5, 2016 

2 



                      

                         

                   

                                  

                          

                 

                      

                           

                      

                 

                   

                         

                   

HEALTH SCIENCES CHARTER SCHOOL
	

Balance Sheets 

June 30, 2016 2015 

Assets 

Current assets: 

Cash 

Receivables (Note 2) 

Prepaid expenses 

$ 635,324 

321,679 

44,473 

1,001,476 

$ 495,629 

114,465 

49,151 

659,245 

Receivables - noncurrent (Note 2) 

Deposits and other assets 

Property and equipment, net (Note 3) 

40,600 

27,153 

7,495,986 

-

34,729 

7,886,557 

$ 8,565,215 $ 8,580,531 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Current liabilities: 

Current portion of long-term debt (Note 5) 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 

Deferred revenue 

$ 190,926 

490,327 

6,877 

688,130 

$ 257,997 

635,882 

19,471 

913,350 

Long-term debt (Note 5) 8,056,624 8,266,177 

Net assets: 

Unrestricted 

Temporarily restricted 

(227,601) 

48,062 

(179,539) 

(610,365) 

11,369 

(598,996) 

$ 8,565,215 $ 8,580,531 

See accompanying notes. 3 



                      

                                  

                      

                          

                      

           

           

                            

                 

                 

                      

                      

                 

                 

                 

                       

            

                          

                           

                       

                   

         

HEALTH SCIENCES CHARTER SCHOOL
	

Statements of Activities 

For the years ended June 30, 2016 2015 

Changes in unrestricted net assets: 

Support and revenue: 

Enrollment fees:
	
Revenue-resident student enrollment
	
Revenue-students with disabilities
	
Revenue-additional state aid
	

Federal grants
	
State and other grants
	
Food service
	
Contributions
	
Other income
	
Net assets released from restictions
	

Total unrestricted support and revenue 

Expenses: 

Program expenses:
	
Regular education
	
Special education
	
Other programs
	

Total program expenses
	
Supporting services:
	

Management and general
	
Total expenses 

Change in unrestricted net assets 

Changes in temporarily restricted net assets: 

Contributions
	
Net assets reclassed from restrictions
	

Change in temporarily restricted net assets 

Change in net assets 

Net assets - beginning 

Net assets - ending 

$ 5,507,767 $ 5,401,851 

583,000 577,867 

99,388 -

296,646 179,743 

13,500 47,844 

247,913 192,693 

51,669 227,521 

99,119 248,523 

10,107 4,500 

6,909,109 6,880,542 

3,269,841 

491,812 

937,371 

4,699,024 

3,611,743 

448,402 

717,569 

4,777,714 

1,827,321 

6,526,345 

2,152,005 

6,929,719 

382,764 (49,177) 

46,800 

(10,107) 

13,794 

(4,500) 

36,693 9,294 

419,457 (39,883) 

(598,996) (559,113) 

(179,539) $ (598,996) 

See accompanying notes. 4 



                      

                      

              

              

                   

                      

                   

                                 

                

                   

                      

                      

                      

                    

                            

                     

                        

HEALTH SCIENCES CHARTER SCHOOL
	

Statements of Cash Flows 

For the years ended June 30, 2016 2015 

Operating activities: 

Cash received from public school districts $ 5,988,212 $ 6,018,884 

Cash received from federal, state and other grants 280,108 724,326 

Cash received from other sources 388,294 205,922 

Payments to employees for services and benefits (3,902,102) (3,758,552) 

Payments to vendors and suppliers (1,487,369) (1,815,504) 

Interest paid (725,368) (695,380) 

Net operating activities 541,775 679,696 

Investing activities: 

Property and equipment expenditures (125,456) (105,700) 

Financing activities: 

Net proceeds from short-term borrowings - 625,000 

Principal payments on long-term debt (276,624) (1,054,023) 

Net financing activites (276,624) (429,023) 

Net change in cash 139,695 144,973 

Cash - beginning 495,629 350,656 

Cash - ending $ 635,324 $ 495,629 

Reconciliation of change in net assets to net 

cash flows from operating activities: 

Change in net assets $ 419,457 $ (39,883) 

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to 

net cash flows from operating activities: 

Depreciation and amortization 523,603 525,041 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 

Receivables (247,814) 236,053 

Prepaid expenses, deposits and other assets 4,678 (4,660) 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses (145,555) (75,415) 

Deferred revenue (12,594) 38,560 

Net operating activities $ 541,775 $ 679,696 

See accompanying notes. 5 



  

HEALTH SCIENCES CHARTER SCHOOL
	

Notes to Financial Statements 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: 

Organization and Purpose: 

Health Sciences Charter School (the School) was 
established in 2009 to operate a charter school in the City 
of Buffalo, New York (the City) pursuant to its Charter 
Agreement with the Board of Regents of the University of 
the State of New York. The School is chartered through 
2017, at which time it must apply to renew its charter.  The 
School is governed by a 13 member, uncompensated 
Board of Trustees and has approximately 440 students in 
grades 9 through 12. 

Basis of Presentation: 

The School reports information regarding its financial 
position and activities according to three classes of net 
assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net 
assets, and permanently restricted net assets. 

Temporarily restricted net assets are those whose use has 
been limited by donors to a specific time period or 
purpose.  Temporarily restricted net assets on the 
accompanying balance sheets represent contributions 
receivable and funds restricted for scholarship awards. 

Permanently restricted net assets are restricted by donors 
to be maintained in perpetuity, the earnings from which 
can be used for unrestricted or specified purposes.  There 
were no permanently restricted net assets as of June 30 
2016 and 2015. 

Cash: 

Cash in financial institutions potentially subjects the School 
to concentrations of credit risk since it may exceed insured 
limits at various times throughout the year. The School 
complies with a requirement to hold no less than $75,000 
in an escrow account to pay for legal and audit expenses 
that would be associated with dissolution should it occur. 

Receivables: 

Receivables are stated at the amounts management expects 
to collect from outstanding balances. Balances outstanding 
after management has used reasonable collection efforts 
are written off through a charge to bad debts expense and 
a credit to accounts receivable.  An allowance for doubtful 
accounts is considered unnecessary by management 
because all significant amounts deemed uncollectible are 
written off each year. 

Property and Equipment: 

Property and equipment is stated at cost net of 
accumulated depreciation.  Depreciation is provided using 
the straight-line method over estimated useful asset lives.  
Maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as 
incurred; significant improvements are capitalized. 

Enrollment Fees: 

The School is reimbursed based on the approved operating 
expense per pupil of the public school district in which the 
student resides.  The amount received each year from the 
resident district is the product of the approved operating 
expense per pupil and the full time equivalent enrollment of 
the students in the School residing in the district.  The 
School’s enrollment fees are received primarily from the 
Board of Education for the City of Buffalo School District. 

Grants: 

The School is the recipient of awards and reimbursements 
from federal, state and local sources.  The awards and 
reimbursements are subject to compliance and financial 
audits by the funding sources.  Management believes no 
significant adjustments are necessary to recognized amounts. 

6 



        

   

 

                    
                           
                           
                          

                           

                           
                           

  

Contributions: 

Contributions, including unconditional promises to give, 
are reported at fair value at the date received. 
Contributions are recorded as restricted support if they are 
received with donor stipulations that limit their use. When 
a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time 
restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, 
temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to 
unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of 
activities as net assets released from restrictions. 
Contributions received with donor-imposed restrictions 
that are met in the same reporting period as received are 
shown as unrestricted revenue. 

Contributed Services: 

Donated services are recognized as contributions if the 
services create or enhance non-financial assets or require 
specialized skill, are performed by people with those skills, 
and would otherwise have been purchased by the School.  
During 2016 and 2015, the value of services recognized as 
revenue and expense approximated $29,000 and $223,000. 

Income Taxes: 

The School is a 501(c)(3) corporation exempt from 
taxation under §501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. The 
School believes it is no longer subject to examination by 
Federal and State authorities for years prior to 2013. 

Subsequent Events: 

Management has evaluated events and transactions for 
potential recognition or disclosure through October 5, 
2016, the date the financial statements were available to be 
issued. 

Use of Estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the 
financial statements and accompanying notes.  Actual 
results could differ from those estimates. 

Cost Allocation: 

The School’s costs of providing its various programs and 
activities have been summarized on a functional basis in 
the statements of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have 
been allocated among the programs and supporting 
services benefited. 

Reclassifications: 

The financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2015 
have been reclassified to conform to the presentation 
adopted for 2016. 

2. Receivables: 

2016 2015 
Enrollment fees 
Grants 
Food service 
Contributions 
Other 

208,805$ 
66,341 
40,333 
46,800 

-
362,279$ 

$ 

$ 

6,862 
6,862 

-
-

107,603 
121,327 

Current 
Noncurrent 
Total receivables 

321,679$ 
40,600 

362,279$ 

$ 

$ 

114,465 
-

114,465 

Contributions: 
Amounts due in: 

Less than one year 
One to five years 
More than five years 

6,200$ 
22,300 
18,300 
46,800$ 

$ 

$ 

-
-
-
-

In July 2016, all New York State charter schools serving 
students in the 2015-2016 school year received additional 
state aid.  The additional aid was based on the number of 
students served and was paid directly from the New York 
Department of Education.  Additional aid totaling $99,388 
is included as enrollment fees receivable on the 
accompanying balances sheet as of June 30, 2016. 

3. Property and Equipment: 

2016 2015 
Land  $ 152,520 $ 152,520 
Buildings and improvements  8,755,204 8,730,726 
Equipment  1,145,823 1,044,845 

10,053,547 9,928,091 
Less accumulated depreciation  2,557,561 2,041,534 

$ 7,495,986 $ 7,886,557 

Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2016 
and 2015 totaled $516,027 and $517,465. 

Included in land and buildings is property acquired in 
November 2013 for $1,525,000. The School intends to use 
the building for future expansion and will begin 
depreciation when placed in service. 
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4. Short-Term Borrowings: 

The School has available a $450,000 bank demand line of 
credit for working capital financing. The line requires 
monthly interest payments at prime plus 1.0%.  The line is 
secured by certain assets, is subject to the usual terms and 
conditions applied by the bank for working capital financing, 
and is annually reviewed and renewed. There were no 
amounts outstanding at June 30, 2016 and 2015. 

5. Long-Term Debt: 

2016 2015 
Mortgage note payable, monthly 

payments of $6,090 including 
interest at prime plus 2.75%, 
estimated balloon payment 
of $644,000 due December 
2018, secured by related 
property. $ 721,647 $ 752,804 

Capital lease obligation, monthly 
payments ranging from $20,000 
to $64,850 including imputed 
interest at 9.00%, due July 2037 
(see Note 7). 6,184,597 6,321,180 

Mortgage note payable, monthly 
payments of $7,771 including 
interest at prime plus 2.75%, 
estimated balloon payment 
of $408,000 due December 
2018, secured by related assets. 557,157 619,758 

Bank note payable, monthly 
payments of $6,771, including 
interest at prime plus 1.00%, 
estimated balloon payment 
of $668,000 due November 
2018, secured by related assets. 784,149 830,432 

8,247,550 8,524,174 
Less current portion 190,926 257,997 

$ 8,056,624 $ 8,266,177 

Aggregate maturities of long-term debt (including principal 
payments under the capital lease obligation) subsequent to 
June 30, 2016 are: 

2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 

Thereafter 

$ 190,926 
216,532 

1,858,571 
82,783 
90,548 

5,808,190 
$ 8,247,550 

Interest expense for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 
was $725,368 and $698,344. 

6.  Retirement Plan: 

The School has a tax-deferred annuity plan qualified under 
Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code covering 
essentially all employees (as defined).  The plan requires 
certain minimum employer contributions based on salaries 
and employee deferrals. Expenses related to the plan for the 
years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 were $110,716 and 
$119,209. 

7. Lease Obligation: 

In 2011, the School entered into a series of purchase, lease, 
and sublease contracts with a developer to acquire and 
renovate the School, and currently subleases the premises 
from the developer under an absolute triple net lease.  The 
lease obligations and related assets have been capitalized for 
financial reporting purposes.  Consequently, land, building 
and improvements include capitalized leased assets totaling 
$5,942,832. Amortization of leased assets included in 
depreciation expense was $237,713 in 2016 and2015, and net 
book value of leased assets was $4,754,268 and $4,991,981 at 
June 30, 2016 and 2015. 

The capital lease term extends through July 2036, with four 
successive five year renewal options and a fifth renewal 
period of three years and seven months.  The agreement 
contains a buyout provision whereby the School may 
terminate the lease any time after July 31, 2016 in 
consideration of payment of the remaining balance on the 
mortgage note payable and any other amounts due the 
landlord, plus a buyout provision.  The buyout provision is 
based on a fixed schedule starting at $1,860,931, with an 
annual escalation clause of 2.5%.  
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Future minimum annual rentals to be paid for the capital 
lease are: 

2017 $ 566,280 
2018 617,760 
2019 617,760 
2020 617,760 
2021 617,760 

Thereafter 10,881,120 
13,918,440 

Amounts representing interest 7,733,843 
Net liability (see Note 5) $ 6,184,597 

8.  Related Party Transactions: 

An employee has an ownership interest in a company to 
which the School made payments totaling $66,000 and 
$60,785 for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015. 

The School’s health insurance is administered through a 
professional employer organization (PEO). A board 
member of the School is an executive of the PEO’s 
underlying health insurance carrier. The School made health 
insurance payments to the PEO of $225,672 and $215,096 
for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015. 

During the year ended June 30, 2015, the School made 
payments totaling $30,000 to a nonprofit organization with a 
common board member. 

9.  Economic Condition: 

The School’s net assets for the current year increased 
$419,457, which reduced its accumulated deficit to $179,539 
at June 30, 2016.  Additionally, the School generated positive 
cash flows from operations for the years ended June 30, 
2016 and 2015, and operated during 2016 without draws 
from the line of credit.  Management believes its plan to 
sustain enrollment at approximately 92% and closely 
monitor expenses will result in continued improvement to 
financial position in subsequent years. 
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HEALTH SCIENCES CHARTER SCHOOL 

Additional Information 

Schedule of Expenses 

For the year ended June 30, 2016 (with comparative totals for 2015) 

2016 2015 
Number 

of Regular Special Other Management 

positions Education Education Programs and General Total Total 

Administrative personnel 12.0 -$ -$ -$ 517,135$ $ 517,135 

Instructional personnel 39.0 1,957,951 306,474 - - 2,264,425 

Non-instructional personnel 7.0 - - 332,271 - 332,271 

Total salaries 58.0 $ 1,957,951 $ 306,474 332,271$ 517,135$ $ 3,113,831 

Salaries $ 1,957,951 $ 306,474 332,271$ 517,135$ $ 3,113,831 $ 3,202,626 

Employee benefits and taxes 373,799 60,290 66,319 102,494 602,902 607,630 

Retirement 68,644 11,072 12,179 18,821 110,716 119,209 

Supplies and materials 56,371 - - - 56,371 82,325 

Transportation - - 14,516 - 14,516 24,655 

Food service - - 243,596 - 243,596 196,660 

Staff development 54,769 - - - 54,769 47,303 

Student services - - 70,342 - 70,342 155,934 

Occupancy 106,837 17,232 18,955 29,294 172,318 210,917 

Utilities 37,060 5,977 6,575 10,162 59,774 87,079 

Repairs and maintenance - - - 90,849 90,849 127,674 

Professional fees - - - 35,752 35,752 300,790 

Recruitment 17,855 - - - 17,855 18,726 

Data and communications 169,182 27,287 30,016 46,389 272,874 163,708 

Office expense - - - 74,772 74,772 101,852 

Contracted services 33,899 5,282 5,767 77,346 122,294 106,285 

Insurance 22,991 3,708 4,079 6,304 37,082 42,311 

Summer school - - 17,383 - 17,383 3,307 

Athletics - - 55,434 - 55,434 62,996 

Uniforms 32,641 - - - 32,641 17,275 

Interest - - - 725,368 725,368 698,344 

Other expenses 13,208 2,130 2,343 3,622 21,303 27,072 

2,945,207 439,452 879,775 1,738,308 6,002,742 6,404,678 

Depreciation and amortization 324,634 52,360 57,596 89,013 523,603 525,041 

Total 3,269,841$ 491,812$ 937,371$ 1,827,321$ $ 6,526,345 $ 6,929,719 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT 
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

The Board of Trustees 
Health Sciences Charter School 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by 
the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Health Sciences Charter School 
(the School), which comprise the balance sheet as of June 30, 2016, and the related statements of activities 
and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued 
our report thereon dated October 5, 2016. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and 
correct, misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the 
entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses 
or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in 
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that 
have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
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Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the School's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the School’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this 
communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

October 5, 2016 
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Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School
 
Education Corporation Trustee
 

Trustee Name: Dr. John Gillespie 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (for an unmerged school, this is 
the Charter School Name): Health Sciences Charter School 

1.	 List all positions held on the education corporation board (e.g., president, treasurer, 
parent representative). 

2.	 Is the trustee an employee of any school operated by the Education Corporation?  
____Yes X No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

3.	 Is the trustee an employee or agent of the management company or institutional 
partner of the charter school(s) governed by the Education Corporation? 

____Yes X No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

4.	 Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that you or 
any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in your 
house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) governed by the Education 
Corporation during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month 
period prior to such service. If there has been no such financial interest or 
transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions 2-4 
above, you need not disclose again your employment status, salary, etc. 

Date(s) Nature of Financial 
Interest/Transaction 

Steps taken to avoid 
a conflict of interest, 

(e.g., did not vote, 
did not participate in 

discussion) 

Name of person
holding interest or

engaging in 
transaction and 
relationship to 

yourself 

None 
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5.	 Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, partnership, 
committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock company, business 
or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) governed by the Education Corporation and in 
which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or your 
immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a financial interest 
or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or employee of an 
organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are doing business with the 
school(s) through a management or services agreement, please identify only the 
name of the organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship 
between such organization and the school(s). If there was no financial interest, write 
None. 

Organization 
conducting

business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 

conducted 

Approximate 
value of the 

business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee and/or 
immediate family member
of household holding an 

interest in the organization
conducting business with

the school(s) and the 
nature of the interest 

Steps Taken 
to Avoid 

Conflict of 
Interest 

None 

S ubmitted by  Health Sc iences  on beha lf  of  Dr.  Gi l lespie  
Signature	 Date 

Please note that this document is considered a public record and as such, may be made available to 
members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law.  Personal contact information 
provided below will be redacted. 

Business Telephone: 

Business Address: 

E-mail Address: 

Home Telephone: 

Home Address: 
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Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School
 
Education Corporation Trustee
 

Trustee Name: Jevon D. Hunter 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (for an unmerged school, this is 
the Charter School Name): Health Sciences Charter School 

1.	 List all positions held on the education corporation board (e.g., president, treasurer, 
parent representative). 

Board Member, Academic Committee Member 

2.	 Is the trustee an employee of any school operated by the Education Corporation?  
____Yes __X__No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

3.	 Is the trustee an employee or agent of the management company or institutional 
partner of the charter school(s) governed by the Education Corporation? 

____Yes __X__No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

4.	 Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that you or 
any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in your 
house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) governed by the Education 
Corporation during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month 
period prior to such service. If there has been no such financial interest or 
transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions 2-4 
above, you need not disclose again your employment status, salary, etc. 

Date(s) Nature of Financial 
Interest/Transaction 

Steps taken to avoid 
a conflict of interest, 

(e.g., did not vote, 
did not participate in 

discussion) 

Name of person
holding interest or

engaging in 
transaction and 
relationship to 

yourself 
None None None None 

P l e a s e  w r i t e  “ N o n e ”  i f  a p p l i c a b l e . D o  n o t  l e a v e  t h i s  s p a c e  b l a n k .  



 
 
 

    
   

  
       

   
        

  
   

 

   
 

 

 
 

     
        

 
   

    
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
  

 
 

  
  

 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

   
  

5.	 Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, partnership, 
committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock company, business 
or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) governed by the Education Corporation and in 
which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or your 
immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a financial interest 
or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or employee of an 
organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are doing business with the 
school(s) through a management or services agreement, please identify only the 
name of the organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship 
between such organization and the school(s). If there was no financial interest, write 
None. 

Organization 
conducting

business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 

conducted 

Approximate 
value of the 

business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee and/or 
immediate family member
of household holding an 

interest in the organization 
conducting business with

the school(s) and the 
nature of the interest 

Steps Taken 
to Avoid 

Conflict of 
Interest 

None 
P l e a s

None 
e  w r i t e  “ N o

None 
n e ”  i f  a p p l i c a

None 
b l e . D o  n o t  l e a v e  t h i s  s p

None 
a c e  b l a n k .  

Jevon D. Hunter 7/10/2016 

Signature Date 

Please note that this document is considered a public record and as such, may be made available to 
members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law.  Personal contact information 
provided below will 

Business Telep 

Business Addr 

E-mail Address 

Home Telepho 

Home Address 
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Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School
 
Education Corporation Trustee
 

Trustee Name:
 
Dr. Marsha Jackson
 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (for an unmerged school, this is 
the Charter School Name): Health Sciences Charter School 

1.	 List all positions held on the education corporation board (e.g., president, treasurer, 
parent representative). Member 

2.	 Is the trustee an employee of any school operated by the Education Corporation?  
____Yes XNo 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

3.	 Is the trustee an employee or agent of the management company or institutional 
partner of the charter school(s) governed by the Education Corporation? 

____Yes XNo 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

4.	 Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that you or 
any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in your 
house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) governed by the Education 
Corporation during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month 
period prior to such service. If there has been no such financial interest or 
transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions 2-4 
above, you need not disclose again your employment status, salary, etc. 

Date(s) Nature of Financial 
Interest/Transaction 

Steps taken to avoid 
a conflict of interest, 

(e.g., did not vote, 
did not participate in 

discussion) 

Name of person
holding interest or

engaging in 
transaction and 
relationship to 

yourself 



    
 
 
 

    
  

   
       

   
         

  
   

 

   
 

 

 
 
________ ________________________________________________________  

        
 

   
    

  
 

 

 
 

 

 
   

 

 

 

 
 

 
  

 
 

  
  

 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   

 

 

  

None 

5.	 Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, partnership, 
committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock company, business 
or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) governed by the Education Corporation and in 
which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or your 
immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a financial interest 
or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or employee of an 
organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are doing business with the 
school(s) through a management or services agreement, please identify only the 
name of the organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship 
between such organization and the school(s). If there was no financial interest, write 
None. 

Organization 
conducting

business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 

conducted 

Approximate 
value of the 

business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee and/or
immediate family member
of household holding an 

interest in the organization
conducting business with 

the school(s) and the
nature of the interest 

Steps Taken 
to Avoid 

Conflict of 
Interest 

None 

S u b m i t t e d  b y  H e a l t h  S c i e n c e s  o n  b e h a l f  o f  D r .  J a c k s o n  

Signature	 Date 

Please note that this document is considered a public record and as such, may be made available to 
members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law.  Personal contact information 
provided below will be redacted. 

Business Teleph 

Business Addre 

E-mail Address: 

Home Telephon 

Home Address: 























EFGHIJKJLMNJNOPQR
 
CDEFGEHIJ789:;9<7:= 

>F?GJ@AHFGEHIJ789:B9<7:= 

CFDEJ: 

STJUVHHRFGJLWOHXJYRZPRHJ[F\WHZOG]WF 

ED@?GEE HGFIJ CL?IGILMJLM
 
FFGE KHHDE?? GNEJOLFDH
 

CLGGIGGEE QLGIMD 
KPPIJIFGILM? REGSEDT 

UV9F, 

KDEFJLP 
H-AEDGI?E. 
FMH9LD 
KHHIGILMFJ 
/LJEJFG 
wxNLLJ 
UAFDEMG. 
?GFPP 
GEGSED. 
EGxy, 

;JGEDG?. 
<77~J� |FzIHJKy CNFID9OLFD : KJJ VE? CED?LMMEJ ADE?EMG CFJGED HJCDE?IHEMG GNDL@DN 
<7:� 

:JGEDG. 
QIxE <7:BJ� /LSEDG �IMFMxE. CNFID9QIxE	 FLGIMFGIMD VE? ADE?EMG < /IxNFDH?LM �FxIJIGIE? CDE?IHEMG	 GNDL@DN 

<7:8 

;JGEDG?. �FxIJIGIE?. <77~J� CTMGNIFJKy RFDVEGIMD. ; wExDEGFDT VE? �FxIJIGIE? ADE?EMG wxN�FDGU KxxL@MGFSI GNDL@DN JIGT <7:� 

RIxNFEJJWy B EDEF?@DED �IMFMxE VE? �IMFMxE �F?L.JCCK 

F@GSEDJLP 
EEDG? 
wEDzEHJFMH 
>EMDGNJLP 
HFxN 
U{MxJ@HE 
EJExGILM 
HFGEJFMH 
GEDG 
E-AIDFGILM, 

;JGEDG?. 
<77~J� 
ADE?EMG 
GNDL@DN 
<7:8 

<JGEDG?. 
REHIxFJ <7::J� |LMMFJRy ED@?GEE9RE RFDVEGIMD	 VE? FHGIMI?GDFG ADE?EMG ODL�M GSED ILM	 GNDL@DN 

<7:= 

123425
 

X 



8 

= 

� 

~ 

:7 

:: 

:< 

:; 

:B 

:X 

:= 

:8 

:� 

:~ 

<7 

>I?FJKy 
CLAALJF. 
H?Yy 

RIxNFEJ 
HHSF@ED. 
|Z 

WLNM 
[IJJE?AIE. 
R| 

RFD?NFJ|y 
WFxV?LM.JCN 
| 

WEzLMJ|y 
]@MGED.JCN 
| 

WLNMJWy 
]EMME??ET 

RIxNFEJJWy 
RLJET 

REJI??FJwy 
E@xVED. 
wC]/ 

ED@?GEE9RE 
GSED 

ED@?GEE9RE 
GSED 

ED@?GEE9RE 
GSED 

ED@?GEE9RE 
GSED 

ED@?GEE9RE 
GSED 

ED@?GEE9RE 
GSED 

ED@?GEE9RE 
GSED 

ED@?GEE9RE 
GSED 

CED?LMMEJ. 
�IMFMxE. 
FLGIMFGIMD 

�IMFMxE 

KxFHEGIx. 
�IMFMxE 

KxFHEGIx 

KxFHEGIx 

EExNMLJLDT 

KxxL@MGFSI 
JIGT 

CED?LMMEJ 

VE? 

VE? 

VE? 

VE? 

VE? 

VE? 

VE? 

VE? 

CED?LMMEJ. 
>F� 

REHIxFJ 
FHGIM?IGDFG 
ILM 

KxFHEGIx 

KxFHEGIx 

KxFHEGIx 

EExNMLJLDT 

CED?LMMEJ 

CED?LMMEJ 

<JGEDG?. 
<7::J� 
ADE?EMG 
GNDL@DN 
<7:8 

:JGEDG. 
<7:XJ� 
ADE?EMG 
GNDL@DN 
<7:8 

;JGEDG?. 
<77~J� 
7=9<7:= 

;JGEDG?. 
<77~J� 
7=9<7:= 

:JGEDG. 
<7:BJ� 
ADE?EMG 
GNDL@DN 
<7:8 

:JGEDG. 
<7:;J� 
ADE?EMG 
GNDL@DN 
<7:= 

;JGEDG?. 
<77~J� 
ADE?EMG 
GNDL@DN 
<7:� 

:JGEDG. 
<7:BJ� 
ADE?EMG 
GNDL@DN 
<7:8 

623425
 



7 

7 

^TJNWGOQJ_VZPRHJW\JYRZPRH`JWFJaVFRJbcdJ^cSe 

:; 

bTJNWGOQJ_VZPRHJW\JYRZPRH`JaW]F]FfJGgRJLWOHXJ^cSehSiJjkgWWQJlROH
 

mTJNWGOQJ_VZPRHJW\JYRZPRH`JnRoOHG]FfJGgRJLWOHXJXVH]FfJGgRJ^cSehSiJjkgWWQJlROH
 

eTJ_VZPRHJW\JgWG]FfJYRZPRH`J^cSehSidJO`J`RGJPIJGgRJPIhQOh`dJHR`WQVG]WFJWH 

Z]FVGR` 

<7 

iTJ_VZPRHJW\JLWOHXJYRRG]Ff`JUWFXVkGRXJ]FJGgRJ^cSehSiJjkgWWQJlROH 

:< 

iTJ_VZPRHJW\JLWOHXJYRRG]Ff`JjkgRXVQRXJ\WHJGgRJ^cSihSiJjkgWWQJlROH 

:< 

NgOFjJIWVT
 

523425
 



 
 

  
 

  
 

      
 

           
   

                                                                                            
   

 
     

   

  
 

 
     

    
  

 
     
     
     
    
  
   
  

  
  
  

  
  

     
 

 
   
   

      
  

 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

    
 

 

Health Sciences Charter School
 
Board Meeting Minutes
 

Date: July 9, 2015 

Location/Time: Health Sciences Charter School - 7:30 a.m. 

Attendees: Donna Brown, Lisa Coppola, Dr. Michael Edbauer, Michael Faso, Dr. John Gillespie, John Hennessey, Dr. Marsha Jackson, David Palmer, 
Robert Richardson, Cynthia Schwartz, Melissa Tucker 

Absent/Excused: Dr. Jevon Hunter, Michael Moley 

Guests: Dr. Hank Stopinski, Gregory Altman, Jan Barrett, Michael Bly, Rob Boccaccio, Melina Vamvas 

Topic Discussion Action 

Call to Order Mr. Palmer called the meeting to order. Based on the number of Trustees currently at 
13, seven persons are required for a quorum. 

Public Comment No public comment. No action required 
Consent Agenda Items (Distributed via 
email) 
• Board Meeting Minutes – 6.11.15 
• Finance Committee Minutes – 7.1.15 
• Personnel Committee Minutes – 6.30.15 
• Technology Committee Minutes – 6.24.15 
• Audit Provider 
• Food Service Extension 
• Resolutions 

1. Salary Adjustments 
2. Employment Resignations 
3. Advance Request for Charter 

Renewal 
4. APPR Withdrawal 

No comment. Dr. Gillespie moved acceptance; Ms. 
Schwartz seconded (all approved). 

Treasurers Report 
• May Financials 
• June Grant Report 

Mr. Faso reported the May financials to be in good order. He also 
reported that the line of credit has continued to be paid down. The 
finance committee is proposing a joint 403b committee with 
members of the finance and personnel committee. 

The finance committee recommended the approval the suggested 
Audit Provider and motioned acceptance. 

Mr. Hennessey moved acceptance; Mr. 
Richardson seconded (all approved). 



  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
  

 

  
 

 
  

 

      
  

 

  
 

  
  

 
  

   
    

 
 

       

  
 

    
 

  
  

 
    

      
 

The finance committee also requested the approval of the 
renegotiation of the mortgage at the same or lower rate. 

Ms. Schwartz moved acceptance; Ms. 
Coppola seconded (all approved) 

Principal’s Report Dr. Stopinski reported the steady influx of complete applications as 
well as a review of the 2014-2015 school year. 

No action required. 

2015-2016 Strategic Priority Projects Dr. Stopinski presented the strategic initiatives for the 2015-2016 
school year including operational, strategic, and charter goals. The 
Board discussed the merits and importance of each goal and agreed 
with each goal as laid out. 

No action required. 

Board Meeting Restructure Dr. Stopinski presented a potential restructure of the board meetings 
including a 7:00 am start time and extended time for strategic 
discussions. 

Dr. Edbauer moved acceptance; Dr. Gillespie 
seconded (all approved). 

Update-1291 Task Force Mr. Richardson reported the task force’s initial thoughts for the 1291 
Main Street Property. Several options were presented. 

The 1291 Task Force will present their 
recommendations for the 1291 Property at 
next meeting on August 13, 2015. 

Philanthropy Kickoff Dr. Edbauer presented the philanthropic plan for 2015-2016 
including target goals and outreach techniques. 

No action required. 

New Business Board Staff Breakfast - 8.27.15 (7:30-8:00 am) No action required. 

Executive Session No executive session was required. Mr. Palmer called for the 
meeting to be adjourned. 

Ms. Schwartz motioned acceptance; Ms. 
Coppolla seconded (all approved). 

The above minutes have been reviewed by Cynthia Schwartz, Secretary 
Final Approval: Thursday, August 13, 2015 – 7:00 a.m. at Health Sciences 



 
 

  

 
  

 
     

 
       

  
                                                                                            

  
 

     

   

  
 

 
     

   

  
 

    

    

    

   
 

  
  
  

  

  

  

  

 

    
   

  

 

   
 

 

  

  

 
  

 
 

  
 

 

     

Health Sciences Charter School
 
Board Meeting Minutes
 

Date: August 13, 2015 

Location/Time: Health Sciences Charter School - 7:00 a.m. 

Attendees:   Lisa Coppola, Dr. Michael Edbauer, Michael Faso, Dr. John Gillespie, John Hennessey, Dr. Marsha Jackson, Michael Moley, David Palmer, 
Robert Richardson, Cynthia Schwartz 

Absent/Excused: Donna Brown, Dr. Jevon Hunter, Melissa Tucker 

Guests: Dr. Hank Stopinski, Gregory Altman, Jan Barrett, Michael Bly, Rob Boccaccio, Dr. Richard Hershberger, Melina Vamvas 

Topic Discussion Action 

Call to Order Mr. Palmer called the meeting to order. Based on the number of Trustees currently at 
13, seven persons are required for a quorum. 

Public Comment No public comment. No action required 

Consent Agenda Items (Distributed via 
email) 
 Board Meeting Minutes – 7.9.15 

 Finance Committee Minutes – 8.5.15 

 Personnel Committee Minutes – 6.30.15 

 Technology Committee Minutes – 
7.22.15 

 Employment Resolutions 
1. Resignation 
2. New Hires 

 AmeriCorps (ABLE) Agreement 

 BOCES 2015-16 Fee Structure 

 Buffalo Hearing and Speech Contract 

 Grant Builders Contract 

The Board discussed the four contracts presented. All were 
approved as written with the exception of Buffalo Hearing and 
Speech. The Board gave conditional acceptance of the contract with 
the addition of required school background checks. 

Mr. Moley moved acceptance; Mr. Hennessey 
seconded (all approved). 

Treasurers Report 

 June Financials 

 July Grant Report 

Mr. Faso reported the financials to be satisfactory and the school 
has been out of the line of credit for several months. Mr. Faso 
requested a joint meeting with the finance and personnel 
committees to review the 403b plan. 

Mr. Moley moved acceptance; Mr. Hennessey 
seconded (all approved). 

Principal’s Report Dr. Stopinski discussed the successful summer school session, 
giving a special thanks to Ms. Heidie Buffomante, Assistant 

No action required. 



 

  

  
 

    
 

 
 

  

 
  

    
 

 

     
  
   

    

  

 

  
 

   
    

 
 

 

 
   

     
 

Principal, for her leadership during the session. Dr. Stopinski also 
thanked Ted Kachris, former Health Sciences employee, for 
donating to the student opportunity fund. 

1291 Task Force Presentation Mr. Richardson reported the task force’s final thoughts for the 1291 
Main Street Property. Several options were presented. 

The 1291 Task Force will discuss the best 
options as well as incorporate suggestions 
given by the Board. 

Student Opportunity Fund-Health 
Sciences Foundation 

Ms. Barrett discussed the creation of a Health Sciences Foundation. 
The Foundation is in its preliminary stages and will be presented in 
the future. 

No action required. 

New Business Board Staff Breakfast - 8.27.15 (7:30-8:00 am) 
August Commencement- 8.10.15 (5:30pm) 
October 8 Board Meeting – Canceled 
Annual Board Retreat – 10.9.15 (7:00a-2:00pm at BCBS) 

 Identify Planning Group 

No action required. 

Executive Session No executive session was required. Mr. Palmer called for the 
meeting to be adjourned. 

Mr. Moley moved acceptance; Dr. Edbauer 
seconded (all approved). 

The above minutes have been reviewed by Cynthia Schwartz, Secretary 
Final Approval: Thursday, September 10, 2015 – 7:00 a.m. at Health Sciences 



 
 

  
 

  
 

      
 

              
  

                                                                                            
    

 
      

   

  
 

 
     

    
  

 
 

 
  

  
 

     
    
    

 
     
     
   

 
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

 
 

 

   
 

 
    

    
 

Health Sciences Charter School
 
Board Meeting Minutes
 

Date: September 10, 2015 

Location/Time: Health Sciences Charter School - 7:00 a.m. 

Attendees: Lisa Coppola, Dr. Michael Edbauer, Michael Faso, John Hennessey, Dr. Jevon Hunter, Dr. Marsha Jackson, Michael Moley, David Palmer, 
Robert Richardson 

Absent/Excused: Donna Brown, Dr. Joh Gillespie, Cynthia Schwartz 

Guests: Dr. Hank Stopinski, Gregory Altman, Jan Barrett, Rob Boccaccio, Jeffrey Holt, Melina Vamvas 

Topic Discussion Action 

Call to Order Mr. Palmer called the meeting to order. Based on the number of Trustees currently at 
13, seven persons are required for a quorum. 

Public Comment No public comment. No action required 
Jeffrey Holt Introduction Mr. Palmer introduced a new board member, pending state 

approval, Mr. Jeffrey Holt from Kaleida Health. The board welcomed 
Mr. Holt. 

Ms. Coppola moved acceptance; Mr. 
Hennessey seconded (all approved). 

Consent Agenda Items (Distributed via 
email) 
• Board Meeting Minutes – 8.13.15 
• Academic Committee Minutes – 9.02.15 
• Facilitates Committee Minutes – 

08.18.15 
• Finance Committee Minutes – 8.5.15 
• Personnel Committee Minutes – 8.25.15 
• Technology Committee Minutes – 

8.26.15 
• Employment Resolutions 

1. Resignations 
2. New Hires 
3. Audit Review 

• Debt Extension 
• ESC Contract 
• Mollenberg-Betz Contract 

The Board discussed the two contracts presented. All were 
approved. 

Dr. Edbauer moved acceptance; Ms. Coppola 
seconded (all approved). 

Treasurers Report 
• August Grant Report 

Mr. Faso reported the Finance Committee recommends the 
approval of the Debt Extension on same terms and conditions. 

Mr. Richardson moved acceptance; Mr. 
Hennessey seconded (all approved). 



  

   
   

  

 
  

 
 

    

  
 

  
  

 

  
 

  
  

 

 
   

   

      

  
 

  
 

    
  

 
 

    
       

 

• Debt Extension 
Mr. Faso also requested approval for the Board to delegate the audit 
approval to the Finance Committee as the audit will be due before 
the next monthly Board of Trustees Meeting. 

Mr. Moley moved acceptance; Mr. Hennessey 
seconded (all approved). 

Principal’s Report Dr. Stopinski discussed the tentative board retreat agenda. No action required. 

Academic Report Mr. Boccaccio presented an academic report of the 2014-2015 
school year. Mr. Boccaccio focused on graduation predictions, 
school culture, and a new discipline matrix. The Board thank Mr. 
Boccaccio and the Leadership Team for their work. 

No action required. 

Student Internship Presentation Dr. Stopinski introduced Tyler Horton, Class of 2017. Mr. Horton 
discussed his summer internship at Roswell Park in the Pathology 
Laboratory. The Board thanked Mr. Horton for presenting to them 
and wished him luck in his future academic ventures. 

No action required. 

Old Business 
1. Student Opportunity Fund 

Dr. Edbauer presented new marketing materials for networking. No action required. 

New Business Annual Board Retreat – 10.9.15 (7:00a-2:00pm at BCBS) No action required. 

Executive Session Mr. Palmer called for an Executive Session to discuss a personnel 
item. 

Mr. Hennessey moved acceptance; Mr. 
Richardson seconded (all approved). 

The above minutes have been reviewed by Cynthia Schwartz, Secretary
Final Approval: Thursday, September 10, 2015 – 7:00 a.m. at Health Sciences 



 
 

  
 

   
 

     
 

          
      

                                                                                            
  

 
       

   

  
 

 
     

   
  

 
    
   

 
   

 
    

 
    

 
   

 
  
  
  

 

       
  

  

 

  
    

 

  
 

Health Sciences Charter School
 
Board Meeting Minutes
 

Date: October 9, 2015 

Location/Time: BlueCross BlueShield - 7:30 a.m. 

Attendees: Donna Brown, Lisa Coppola, Dr. Michael Edbauer, Michael Faso, Dr. Joh Gillespie, John Hennessey, Dr. Jevon Hunter, Dr. Marsha 
Jackson, Michael Moley, David Palmer, Robert Richardson 

Absent/Excused: Cynthia Schwartz 

Guests: Dr. Hank Stopinski, Gregory Altman, Jan Barrett, Rob Boccaccio, Dr. Richard Hershberger Jeffrey Holt, Melina Vamvas 

Topic Discussion Action 

Call to Order Mr. Palmer called the meeting to order. Based on the number of Trustees currently at 
13, seven persons are required for a quorum. 

Public Comment No public comment. No action required 
Consent Agenda Items (Distributed via 
email) 
• Board Meeting Minutes – 09.10.15 
• Academic Committee Minutes – 

10.01.15 
• Accountability Committee Minutes – 

02.18.2015 
• Finance Committee Minutes – 

09.30.2015 
• Personnel Committee Minutes – 

09.29.15 
• Technology Committee Minutes – 

09.23.15 
• Employment Resolutions 
• Workplace Violence Policy 
• Total Rewards Philosophy and 

Strategy Statement Policy 

No comment Dr. Jackson moved acceptance; Ms. Brown 
seconded (all approved). 

Election of Officers Ms. Coppola presented the 2015-2016 Board of Trustees slate: 

Term expires August 31, 2016: 

• Donna M. Brown 
• Lisa A. Coppola, Esq. 

Ms. Coppola moved acceptance of 2015-2016 
slate of officers, board members, and 
committee assignments; Mr. Moley seconded 
(all approved). 



  

   
   

 
 

   
   
   
   
   

 

 

    
    
   
     
     

 

          
 

 
 

   
  

 

  
 

 

   
 

  
  

 

 

  
 

  
 

    
  

 
 

 
    

• Michael J. Faso, CPA, Treasurer 
• John J. Hennessey 

Term expires August 31, 2017: 

• Michael Edbauer, D.O. 
• Debora M. Hayes 
• Jevon D. Hunter, Ph.D 
• Melissa S. Tucker 
• Robert Richardson – Vice President 

Tern expires August 31, 2018: 

• John Gillespie, M.D. 
• Marsha D. Jackson, Ph.D. 
• Michael J. Moley 
• David A. Palmer - President 
• Cynthia A. Schwartz - Secretary 

Annual Performance Survey Results Mr. Moley presented the results of the Annual Board Survey. Mr. Moley will discuss with Dr. Stopinski and 
Mr. Palmer about a course of action for those 
that scored themselves low. 

Treasurers Report 
• August Financials 

Mr. Altman reported the school is operating close to the budget. He 
also reported that New York State Educational Department will be 
conducting a Fiscal Site Visit in the coming weeks and the finance 
committee has reviewed the 403 B plan and is working with the 
personnel committee to review the plans regularly. 

Mr. Faso moved acceptance; Dr. Edbauer 
seconded (all approved). 

Principal’s Report Dr. Stopinski mentioned the upcoming Buffalo Urban League 
Conference at the school on October 17 featuring Superintendent 
Cash. 

No action required. 

Executive Session Mr. Palmer called for an Executive Session to discuss a personnel 
item. 

Mr. Hennessey moved acceptance; Mr. 
Richardson seconded (all approved). 

The above minutes have been reviewed by Cynthia Schwartz, Secretary 



  

       
 

Final Approval: Thursday, November 10, 2015 – 7:00 a.m. at Health Sciences 



 
 

 
 

  
 

      
 

        
    

                                                                                            
  

 
    

   

     
 

    
   
  

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  

 

  
  

 
 

Health Sciences Charter School
 
Board Meeting Minutes
 

Date: November 12, 2015 

Location/Time: Health Sciences - 7:00 a.m. 

Attendees: Donna Brown, Lisa Coppola, Dr. Michael Edbauer, Michael Faso, Dr. John Gillespie, John Hennessey, Dr. Jevon Hunter, 
Michael Moley, David Palmer, Robert Richardson, Cynthia Schwartz 

Absent/Excused: Dr. Marsha Jackson, Melissa Tucker 

Guests: Dr. Hank Stopinski, Greg Altman, Dr. Richard Hershberger, Jeffrey Holt, Melina Vamvas 

Topic Discussion Action 

Call to Order Mr. Palmer called the meeting to order. Based on the number of Trustees 
currently at 13, the new number for a 
quorum is seven persons in attendance. 

Public Comment No public comment No action required. 
Consent Agenda (distributed via email) 

• Board Retreat Minutes – 10.9.15 
• Academic Committee Minutes – 11.5.15 
• Facilities Committee Minutes – 11.6.15 
• Finance Committee Minutes – 10.29.15 
• Marketing Committee Minutes – 11.5.15 
• Personnel Committee Minutes – 10.27.15 
• Technology Committee Minutes – 10.28.15 
• Resolutions 

No comment. Ms. Brown moved acceptance; Mr. 
Hennessey seconded (all approved). 

Treasurer’s Report 

• October Grant Report 

Mr. Faso reported the annual audit and financial 
site visit were complete with minimal comment. 

Ms. Coppola moved acceptance; Ms. 
Schwartz seconded (all approved). 



  

   

 

   
 

 
 

  
  

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

    
 

  
 

 
   

       
 

Audit Committee Recommendation Mr. Faso motioned the acceptance of the audit 
committee recommendations for the 2015 
Financial Audit. 

Ms. Schwartz moved acceptance; Ms. 
Coppola seconded (all approved). 

Principal’s Report Dr. Stopinski reported that enrollment is staying 
steady at 460 with new students enrolling each 
week. He also thanked Catholic Health and The 
Teacher’s Desk for donations to the Holiday 
Giving Drive. 

Dr. Edbauer discussed the Opportunity Fund and 
thanked those that have donated or facilitated 
donations. He also encouraged more donations to 
accommodate all the needs the fund hopes to 
address. 

No action required. 

2015/2016 Student Demographic Report Dr. Stopinski and Mr. Boccaccio presented the 
demographics for the current student population. 

No action required. 

Executive Session Mr. Palmer called for an Executive Session to 
discuss a personnel item. 

Dr. Edbauer moved acceptance; Ms. 
Coppola seconded (all approved). 

The above minutes have been reviewed by Cynthia Schwartz, Secretary 
Final Approval: Thursday, December 10, 2015 – 7:00 a.m. at Health Sciences Charter School 



 

 
 

 

  

  

    

 

     

    

                                                                                            

  

 

      

   

   

 

  

   

  

   

  

 

   

   

   

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

   

  

 

  

 

 

  

Health Sciences Charter School
 
Board Meeting Minutes
 

Date: December 10, 2015 

Location/Time: Health Sciences - 7:00 a.m. 

Attendees:   Donna Brown, Lisa Coppola, Dr. Michael Edbauer, Michael Faso, Dr. John Gillespie, John Hennessey, Dr. Marsha Jackson, 

Michael Moley, David Palmer, Robert Richardson, Cynthia Schwartz, Melissa Tucker 

Absent/Excused: Dr. Jevon Hunter 

Guests: Dr. Hank Stopinski, Greg Altman, Dr. Richard Hershberger, Melina Vamvas 

Topic Discussion Action 

Call to Order Mr. Palmer called the meeting to order. Based on the number of Trustees 

currently at 13, the new number for a 

quorum is seven persons in attendance. 

Public Comment No public comment No action required. 

Consent Agenda (distributed via email) 

 Board Retreat Minutes – 11.12.15 

 Accountability  Committee Minutes – 
08.13.15 

 Finance Committee Minutes – 12.2.15 

 Marketing Committee Minutes – 12.3.15 

 Personnel Committee Minutes – 11.24.15 

 2015-2016 Marketing Plan 

 EFML Policy 

 Snow Day Policy 

No comment. Ms. Coppola moved acceptance; Ms. 

Schwartz seconded (all approved). 

Treasurer’s Report 

 October Finances 

 Opportunity Fund 

 November Grant Report 

Mr. Faso reported the financials are currently at a 

positive operating amount. 

Ms. Schwartz moved acceptance; Ms. 

Coppola seconded (all approved). 



  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

   

      

 

Staff Demographic Report Mr. Boccaccio presented the staff demographics 

as compared to various districts in Western New 

York. The Board thanked him for his presentation. 

No action required. 

Fiscal Discussion for Charter Renewal Mr. Faso and Mr. Altman presented the fiscal 

framework for charter renewal, specifically the 

information collected around benchmarks 4 and 5 

and the calculation of the composite score. 

No action required. 

NCTE Student Presentation Dr. Stopinski introduced Ms. Alicia Monaco, 

English Teacher, and 4 students that travelled and 

presented at the National Council for Teachers of 

English Conference in November. The students 

discussed their research and presentation as well 

as thanked the Board for their support of the trip.  

The Board thanked the students for their 

presentation. 

No action required. 

Executive Session No executive session was required. Mr. Palmer 

called the meeting to be adjourned. 

Mr. Moley moved acceptance; Ms. 

Coppola seconded (all approved). 

The above minutes have been reviewed by Cynthia Schwartz, Secretary 

Final Approval: Thursday, January 14, 2016 – 7:00 a.m. at Health Sciences Charter School 



 
 

 
 

  
  

      
 

         
   

                                                                                            
    

 
    

   

     
  

  
   
  

   
    
   
     
    
     
    
  
  
  
  
   
  
  
  
 

  
 

 
  

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Health Sciences Charter School
 
Board Meeting Minutes
 

Date: January 14, 2016 

Location/Time: Health Sciences - 7:00 a.m. 

Attendees: Donna Brown, Lisa Coppola, Dr. Michael Edbauer, Michael Faso, John Hennessey, Dr. Jevon Hunter, Michael Moley, David 
Palmer, Cynthia Schwartz, Melissa Tucker 

Absent/Excused: Dr. John Gillespie, Dr. Marsha Jackson, Robert Richardson 

Guests: Dr. Hank Stopinski, Greg Altman, Dr. Richard Hershberger, Melina Vamvas 

Topic Discussion Action 

Call to Order Mr. Palmer called the meeting to order. Based on the number of Trustees 
currently at 13, the number for a quorum 
is seven persons in attendance. 

Public Comment No public comment No action required. 
Consent Agenda (distributed via email) 

• Board Meeting Minutes— 12.10.15 
• Academic Committee Minutes – 01.07.16 
• Facilities Committee Minutes – 01.08.15 
• Finance Committee Minutes – 01.06.16 
• Marketing Committee Minutes – 01.07.16 
• Personnel Committee Minutes – 12.22.15 
• Technology Committee Minutes – 12.09.15 
• Employment Resolution 
• Boy Scouts High School Explorer Post Approval 
• FOIL Request Policy 
• Management and Financial Accountability Policy 
• Credit/Debit Card Transaction Policy 
• Enrollment & Admission Policy 
• 403b Auto Enrollment Recommendation 
• Incentive Plan Recommendation 

The Board discussed enrollment preferences in 
regards to student home district. The Board 
decided to discuss enrollment guidelines during 
discussions surrounding charter renewal. 

Ms. Schwartz moved acceptance; Mr. 
Moley seconded (all approved). 



  

 

 
 

  
 

 

   
  

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  

  

 

  

  
 

 

  
  

 

 

  
 

  
  

 
   

       
 

Treasurer’s Report Mr. Faso reported the financials are currently at a 
positive operating amount. The Board reviewed 
the financials including review of relevant ratios 
and metrics for the composite score. 

Ms. Schwartz moved acceptance; Ms. 
Coppola seconded (all approved). 

2016-2017 Budget Assumptions and Priorities Mr. Altman and Mr. Faso presented the 
recommended priorities and assumptions for 
determining the 2016-2017 budget. 

Mr. Faso requested the Board accept the 2016­
2017 Budget Assumptions and Priorities as 
reviewed and recommended by the Finance 
Committee 

Mr. Moley moved acceptance; Ms. 
Schwartz seconded (all approved). 

Cohort Data Presentation Mr. Boccaccio presented 2010 and 2011 Cohort 
Data, specifically comparing the 2010 Cohort to 
Buffalo City District and New York State. 

No action required. 

Annual Site Visit Dr. Stopinski discussed the Annual NYSED Site 
Visit schedule and details. The Board discussed 
the 10 Benchmarks as well as the possible focus 
group topics. 

No action required. 

New Business Ms. Barrett discussed the creation of a task force 
to review and revise (if necessary) the mission, 
vision, and strategic plan. 

No action required. 

Executive Session No executive session was required. Mr. Palmer 
called the meeting to be adjourned. 

Mr. Moley moved acceptance; Ms. 
Coppola seconded (all approved). 

The above minutes have been reviewed by Cynthia Schwartz, Secretary 
Final Approval: Thursday, February 11, 2016 – 7:00 a.m. at Health Sciences Charter School 



 
 

  
 

   
 

      
 

             
 

                                                                                            
   

 
     

   

  
 

 
     

   
  

 
     
    
     
    
     
   

 
  

  
  

  

  

 

    
 

 
 

   
 

  
  

 
  

 
 

   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Health Sciences Charter School
 
Board Meeting Minutes
 

Date: February 11, 2016 

Location/Time: Health Sciences Charter School - 7:00 a.m. 

Attendees: Lisa Coppola, Dr. Michael Edbauer, Michael Faso, Dr. John Gillespie, John Hennessey, Michael Moley, David Palmer, Robert Richardson, 
Melissa Tucker 

Absent/Excused: Donna Brown, Cynthia Schwartz, Dr. Jevon Hunter, Dr. Marsha Jackson 

Guests: Dr. Hank Stopinski, Gregory Altman, Rob Boccaccio, Jeffrey Holt, Dr. Richard Hershberger 

Topic Discussion Action 

Call to Order Mr. Palmer called the meeting to order. Based on the number of Trustees currently at 
13, seven persons are required for a quorum. 

Public Comment No public comment. No action required 
Consent Agenda Items (Distributed via 
email) 
• Board Meeting Minutes – 1.14.16 
• Academic Committee Minutes – 2.05.16 
• Finance Committee Minutes – 2.03.16 
• Marketing Committee Minutes – 2.04.16 
• Personnel Committee Minutes – 1.26.16 
• Technology Committee Minutes – 

1.27.16 
• Employment Resolutions 

1. New Hires 
2. Termination 

• Accountability Audit Report 

Dr. Stopinski discussed the Accountability Audit report. Mr. Faso moved acceptance; Mr. Hennessey 
seconded (all approved). 

Treasurers Report Mr. Faso reported on the December 31, 2015 financial reports 
including review of cash flow, budget, relevant ratios and indicators. 
Messrs. Faso and Altaman summarized conversations with Susan 
Gibbons during the recent SED site visit surrounding the composite 
score. The Board discussed the Opportunity Fund and pledge 
requests. 

Dr. Edbauer moved acceptance; Dr. Gillespie 
seconded (all approved). 



  

 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 

   
 

 

 

      
    

 
  

   
    
  

 

 

 
   

 
 

   
 

 
 

   

 
 

 
 

 
  

  

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 

   

    
    

 

  
 

  
 

    
  

 
 

Mr. Faso noted that the Form 990 had been sent electronically to all 
Board members. 

Board members will review Form 990 and 
direct any questions to Messrs. Faso or 
Altman. 

Prospective Board Members Mr. Richardson provided brief bios on prospective Board members. 
Mr. Richardson suggested setting a date for the Board to interview 
prospective Board members. 

Mr. Richardson will circulate a date. 

Principal’s Report Dr. Stopinski discussed enrollment and the recent NYSED site visit. 
Mr. Boccaccio presented graduation rate predictions. Dr. Gillespie 
discussed his observations from the recent Academic Committee 
meeting where students were present and spoke about the success 
of the adopt-a­junior/senior program and the importance of the 
mentoring the teachers do with students. Recommendation was 
made to recognize staff involved in mentoring students at graduation 
ceremony. 

No action required. 

Board Nomination and Succession 
Strategy 

Mr. Richardson made a motion: 

BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED THAT this Board's bylaws at paragraph 
C(2) of Article VI, entitled “ACTION BY THE BOARD" is modified by 
adding a standing Nominating Committee and therefore the first 
sentence of VI(C)(2) of the bylaws now shall read as follows: 

Appointment of Committee members. The Board shall have the 
following standing Board committees: Executive (chaired by the 
Board President), Finance (chaired by the Board Treasurer), 
Marketing, Academics, Accountability, Personnel, Technology, and 
Nominating. 

Mr. Richardson made a motion to have the following people on the 
nominating committee:  Mr. Robert Richardson (chair); Melva 
Visher; Pat Whalen. 

Dr. Gillespie moved acceptance; Dr. Edbauer 
seconded (all approved). 

Revised By-Laws will be sent to NYSED’s 
Charter School Office. 

Mr. Moley moved acceptance; Ms. Coppola 
seconded (all approved). 

Student Presentation The school’s choir was introduced and performed. No action required. 

New Business Dr. Gillespie discussed his observations and the benefits he derived 
from observing classrooms and teachers. 

No action required. 

Executive Session No executive session was required. Mr. Palmer called the meeting 
to be adjourned. 

Mr. Hennessey moved acceptance; Mr. 
Richardson seconded (all approved). 



  

    
      

 

The above minutes have been reviewed by Cynthia Schwartz, Secretary 
Final Approval: Thursday, March 10, 2016 – 7:00 a.m. at Health Sciences 



 
 

  
 

  
 

      
 

            
 

                                                                                            
    

 
    

 

   

  
 

 
     

   
  

 
     
    
     
    

 
   

 
  
  
  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
    

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Health Sciences Charter School
 
Board Meeting Minutes
 

Date: March 11, 2016 

Location/Time: Health Sciences Charter School - 7:00 a.m. 

Attendees: Donna Brown, Lisa Coppola, Michael Faso, John Hennessey, Michael Moley, David Palmer, Robert Richardson, Cynthia Schwartz, Melissa 
Tucker 

Absent/Excused: Dr. Michael Edbauer, Dr. John Gillespie, Dr. Jevon Hunter, Dr. Marsha Jackson 

Guests: Dr. Hank Stopinski, Gregory Altman, Rob Boccaccio, Jeffrey Holt, Dr. Richard Hershberger, Melina Vamvas, Michele 
DePasquale, Danielle Kruse 

Topic Discussion Action 

Call to Order Mr. Palmer called the meeting to order. Based on the number of Trustees currently at 
13, seven persons are required for a quorum. 

Public Comment No public comment. No action required 
Consent Agenda Items (Distributed via 
email) 
• Board Meeting Minutes – 02.11.16 
• Academic Committee Minutes – 03.03.16 
• Finance Committee Minutes – 03.02.16 
• Personnel Committee Minutes – 

02..23.16 
• Technology Committee Minutes – 

02.24.16 
• Health Insurance Resolution 
• New Employee Resolution 
• Title IX 

No comment. Mr. Moley moved acceptance; Mr. Richardson 
seconded (all approved). 

Treasurers Report Mr. Faso stated the finances are in good standing. He also 
discussed the future growth of the composite score. Mr. Faso 
stressed the importance of increasing the reserve fund and urged 
the Board to continue their hard work on the matter. 

Ms. Coppola moved acceptance; Mr. 
Richardson seconded (all approved). 



  

 
    

  
 

   

  
 

 
 

 

 

   
  

   
 

 

     
  

    
 

 
   

 

 

   
  

  
  
  

 

     
 

  
 

  
 

     
 

 
 

    
      

 

Principal’s Report Dr. Stopinski presented the current enrollment and new application 
numbers. 

No action required. 

Regents Testing Mr. Boccaccio, Ms. Kruse, and Ms. DiPasquale presented a sample 
Regents test to the Board and discussed the issues students face 
when presented with those same questions. Ms. Kruse and Ms. 
DiPasquale discussed the important of literacy across the content 
areas. The Board thanked Ms. Kruse, Ms. DiPasquale, and Mr. 
Boccaccio for the hard work they do to help the students to become 
academically successful. 

No action required. 

Charter School Landscape Dr. Stopinski discussed the future of the charter schools in Buffalo, 
stating the need to start a strategic dialog about charter revisions. 
The Board discussed potential avenues of success to obtain a 5 
year charter renewal. 

No action required. 

Student Presentation—Basketball Team Dr. Stopinski presented Ty Parker, Boys Varsity Basketball coach, 
Davonte Gaines, Captain, and Bobby Oliver, Captain. Mr. Parker 
discussed how athletics affects student success and as a potential 
source of scholarship for college. The Board thanked Mr. Parker for 
his incredible work. Mr. Oliver and Mr. Gaines thanked the school 
and Board for assisting them in both their academic and athletic 
success. 

No action required. 

Nominating Board Members Pending the upcoming revised Bylaw approval Mr. Richardson 
moved to present and approved three pending board members: 
• Rick Hershberger 
• Jim Jarosz 
• Patrick Whalen 

Mr. Moley moved acceptance; Ms. Schwartz 
seconded (all approved). 

Executive Session No executive session was required. Mr. Palmer called the meeting 
to be adjourned. 

Mr. Moley moved acceptance; Mr. Richardson 
seconded (all approved). 

The above minutes have been reviewed by Cynthia Schwartz, Secretary
Final Approval: Thursday, April 14, 2016 – 7:00 a.m. at Health Sciences 



 
 

  
 

  
 

      
 

            
 

                                                                                            
     

 
       

   

  
 

 
     

     
 

 

  
 
   
 

 
  

 
   
  

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

     
    

 

  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Health Sciences Charter School
 
Board Meeting Minutes
 

Date: April 14, 2016 

Location/Time: Health Sciences Charter School - 7:00 a.m. 

Attendees: Donna Brown, Lisa Coppola, Michael Faso, Dr. Michael Edbauer, Dr. John Gillespie, Michael Moley, David Palmer, Cynthia Schwartz, 
Melissa Tucker 

Absent/Excused: John Hennessey, Dr. Jevon Hunter, Dr. Marsha Jackson, Robert Richardson, 

Guests: Dr. Hank Stopinski, Gregory Altman, Rob Boccaccio, Cullan Donnelly, Jim Jarosz, Melina Vamvas, 

Topic Discussion Action 

Call to Order Mr. Palmer called the meeting to order. Based on the number of Trustees currently at 
13, seven persons are required for a quorum. 

Public Comment Mr. Donnelly, Class of 2014, thanked the Board for welcoming him 
to the meeting. 

No action required 

Consent Agenda Items (Distributed via 
email) 

• Board Meeting Minutes-03.11.16 
• Academic Committee Minutes­

04.08.16 
• Facilities Committee Minutes­

04.01.16 
• Finance Committee Minutes-04.06.16 
• Personnel Committee Minutes­

03.17.16 
• Technology Committee Minutes­

03.03.16 

No comment. Mr. Moley moved acceptance; Ms. Brown 
seconded (all approved). 

Treasurers Report Mr. Altman reported the School is out of the line and running ahead 
of budget. Mr. Altman explained how the composite score is 
calculated and how we monitor our progress. Mr. Faso discussed 
the pledge campaign and pledges to date. 

Mr. Moley moved acceptance; Ms. Coppola 
seconded (all approved). 



  

  
  

   
 

 
 

   
 

 

 
 

  
   

 

 

   
   

 

  
    

   
   

 

 

  
  

 

   
  

   

 

  
 

  
 

 
 

 
    

       
 

2016-2017 Budget Approval Mr. Altman presented the 2016-2017 Budget including changes from 
the current budget and its effect on the composite score. The 
Finance committee recommends the approval of the 2016-2017 
Budget. 

Mr. Faso moved acceptance; Ms. Schwartz 
seconded (all approved). 

Board of Trustees Bylaws Revisions Ms. Coppola presented the revised Bylaws and specified the 
material changes including a higher number of possible board 
members. 

Ms. Coppola moved acceptance; Ms. 
Schwartz seconded (all approved). 

Principal’s Report Dr. Stopinski reported the current enrollment for the current school 
year is around 450 and discussed the target of having 480 students 
in October of 2016. 

No action required. 

Charter Renewal Update Dr. Stopinski presented the updated framework for charter renewal 
as well as the work plan for submitting the charter renewal. 

No action required. 

Student Presentation Dr. Stopinski introduced Mr. Banas, Ms. Banas, and three students 
(Bethany Lebron, Class of 2016, Gabrielle Page, Class of 2017 
Imani Thomas, Class of 2017 who went to Puerto Rico. Mr. Banas 
thanked the board for their contributions to the trip; allowing two 
students to attend that would not have been financially able. 

The Board thanked Mr. Banas and Ms. Banas for offering this 
opportunity for the students. 

No action required. 

Staff Presentation Dr. Stopinski introduced Mr. Orozco, Facilities Manager, winner of 
the WNYESC Award of Excellence. The Board thanked Mr. Orozco 
for all the hard he does on a daily basis. 

No action required. 

Executive Session No executive session was required. Mr. Palmer called the meeting 
to be adjourned. 

The above minutes have been reviewed by Cynthia Schwartz, Secretary 
Final Approval: Thursday, May 12, 2016 – 7:00 a.m. at Health Sciences 



 
 

  
 

  
 

      
 

              
 

                                                                                            
    

 
       

 

   

  
 

 
     

   
  

 
    
   
    
    
   
    
   
  
  

  
  
  
  

 
 

 

 

   
  

  
 

  

 
 

 
      

Health Sciences Charter School
 
Board Meeting Minutes
 

Date: May 12, 2016 

Location/Time: Health Sciences Charter School - 7:00 a.m. 

Attendees: Lisa Coppola, Dr. Michael Edbauer, Michael Faso, Dr. John Gillespie, John Hennessey, David Palmer, Robert Richardson Cynthia 
Schwartz, Melissa Tucker 

Absent/Excused: Michael Moley, Dr. Jevon Hunter, Dr. Marsha Jackson, 

Guests: Dr. Hank Stopinski, Gregory Altman, Jan Barrett, Rob Boccaccio, Dr. Richard Hershberger, Jeffrey Holt, Melina Vamvas, 
Patrick Whalen 

Topic Discussion Action 

Call to Order Mr. Palmer called the meeting to order. Based on the number of Trustees currently at 
13, seven persons are required for a quorum. 

Public Comment No action required 
Consent Agenda Items (Distributed via 
email) 
• Board Meeting Minutes- 04.14.16 
• Academic Committee Minutes- 05.05.16 
• Facilities Committee Minutes- 05.06.16 
• Finance Committee Minutes- 05.05.16 
• Marketing Committee Minutes- 05.05.16 
• Personnel Committee Minutes- 04.26.16 
• Technology Committee Minutes- 04.27.16 
• 2016-2017 Instructional Calendar 
• Resolutions 

1. 403B TPA 
2. Bank Account 
3. Roof 
4. Employee 

No comment. Ms. Coppola moved acceptance, Ms. 
Schwartz seconded (all approved) 

2015-2016 Incentive Plan Ms. Coppola presented the incentive plan for the 2015-2016 school 
year. The incentive plan was recommended by the personal 
committee for Board approval. 

Dr. Edbauer moved acceptance, Ms. 
Schwartz seconded (all approved) 

Treasurers Report Mr. Altman reported the school is continuing to improve on debt Ms. Tucker moved acceptance, Ms. Schwartz 



  

   
  

 

 

    

  
 

 
 

 
 

 

    
  

 
 

 
      

 
  

 
 

 

  
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
    

       
 

service ratio, enrollment stability, and total margin. He also reported 
the school is out of the line of credit. The Board reviewed the 
composite score. 

seconded (all approved) 

Principal’s Report Dr. Stopinski reported the current enrollment is around 450. No action Required 

Charter Renewal Updates about what has been done. Timeline: 
Board recommends July 14 (July board meeting) 
Academic (Their meeting) 
Finacne (Their meeting) 
Personal (Their June Meeting) 
Draft May 27 

Strategic Plan—First Draft Ms. Barrett presented the changes to the strategic plan. The Board 
reviewed the changes and recommended acceptance. 

Dr. Gillespie moved acceptance, Ms. 
Schwartz seconded (all approved) 

Student Presentation Dr. Stopinski introduced Anthony Carrero and Bethany Lebron, 
valedictorian and salutatorian respectively. Mr. Carrero and Ms. 
Lebron discussed their time at Health Sciences, their future plans 
and thanked the Board for the opportunities they have been given. 
The Board congratulated the students on their success. 

No action required. 

Executive Session No executive session was required. Mr. Palmer called the meeting 
to be adjourned. Dr. Edbauer moved acceptance, Ms. 

Schwartz seconded (all approved) 

The above minutes have been reviewed by Cynthia Schwartz, Secretary 
Final Approval: Thursday, June 9, 2016 – 7:00 a.m. at Health Sciences 



 
 

  
 

  
 

  
 

               
   

                                                                                            
  

 
    

   

  
 

 
     

   
  

 
 

 

    
 

   

 
   

   

 
 

   

  
 

  

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

  
 

  
 

Health Sciences Charter School
 
Board Meeting Minutes
 

Date: June 16, 2016 

Location/Time: Roswell Park Cancer Institute-5:00pm 

Attendees: Lisa Coppola, Dr. Michael Edbauer, Michael Faso, Dr. John Gillespie, John Hennessey, Dr. Jevon Hunter, Michael Moley, David Palmer, 
Robert Richardson Cynthia Schwartz, Melissa Tucker 

Absent/Excused: Dr. Marsha Jackson 

Guests: Dr. Richard Hershberger, Michael DeFrietas, Esq 

Topic Discussion Action 

Call to Order Mr. Palmer called the meeting to order. Based on the number of Trustees currently at 
13, seven persons are required for a quorum. 

Public Comment No comment. No action required 
Consent Agenda Items (Distributed via 
email) 

No comment. Ms. Schwartz moved acceptance, Ms. Brown 
seconded (all approved) 

Auditor RFP Mr. Faso presented the Finance Committee’s recommendation that, 
following a review of the proposals received in the response to the 
RFP for auditors services, Lumsden and McCormick be retained as 
the official HSCS auditor starting with the June 30, 2106 closing of 
the fiscal year. 

Mr. Faso moved acceptance, Ms. Brown 
seconded (all approved) 

Executive Session Mr. Palmer requested that Dr. Hershberger be invited to participate 
in the discussion to follow in the Executive Session as a non-voting 
attendee. 

Mr. Palmer requested that the Board move into Executive Session to 
discuss several highly sensitive personnel matters. 

Mr. Moley moved acceptance, Ms. Schwartz 
seconded (all approved) 

Ms. Coppola moved acceptance, Mr. 
Richardson seconded (all approved) 

Executive Session Mr. Palmer requested that the Board come out of Executive 
Session. 

Mr. Faso moved acceptance, Ms. Schwartz 
seconded (all approved) 

Principal Contract The board discussed the principal contract. The board suggested 
rescinding the executive session Board vote on June 9, 2016. 

Dr. Edbauer moved acceptance, Ms. Brown 
seconded (all approved) 

School Resources The board suggested bringing additional resources to the school 
specific to addressing issues regarding the implantation of 
established policies on discipline and school culture. 

Mr. Moley moved acceptance, Mr. Richardson 
seconded (all approved). 



  

  
   

  
 

  

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

    
       

 

Committee of the Corporation Mr. Palmer discussed the establishment of a new Committee of the 
Corporation – the Safety, School Discipline and Student Culture 
Committee – to make recommendations to the Board on policies 
related to the safety, student discipline and school culture and other 
related issues as deemed pertinent. 

Mr. Faso moved acceptance, Mr. Moley 
seconded (all approved) 

End of Meeting Mr. Palmer called the meeting to be adjourned. Dr. Edbauer moved acceptance, Ms. 
Schwartz seconded (all approved) 

The above minutes have been reviewed by Cynthia Schwartz, Secretary
Final Approval: Thursday, June 14, 2016 – 7:00 a.m. at Health Sciences 



      

               
            

                
              

             
             

               
              
           

               
                  

                  
               

    

                
                 

             
             

      

             
                
                

           
             

             
 

           
           

           
            

    

           
           

        

               
                 
              

            
              

              

Entry 11 - Enrollment and Retention Efforts 

Describe the efforts the charter school has made toward meeting the targets in 2015-2016 to 
attract and retain enrollment of students with disabilities, English language learners, and 
students who are eligible for free and reduced priced lunch. In addition, describe the school’s 
plans for meeting or making progress toward meeting its enrollment and retention targets in 
2016-2017. 

Health Sciences has worked to meet or exceed the enrollment, recruitment and retention 
targets required by the 2010 amendments to the Charter Schools Act (Education Law 
§2851(4)(e) and §2852(9-b) that were approved by the Board of Regents at their July 2012 
meeting. New charter enrollment and retention targets listed below were calculated using the 
required NYSED data updated in September 2015 and enrollment and retention calculator. 

The school maintains sufficient enrollment for the school to meet or come close to meeting the 
enrollment plan outlined in the charter. A lottery was held on April 1, 2015 that yielded a wait 
list of 134 students for grades 9-11. On the same date in 2016, a second lottery was held 
whereby 59 students were waitlisted. 30+ new students for the 2016/17 school year are 
siblings of enrolled students. 

The 2015 BEDS enrollment data was 462 students, 88% qualified for FRLP. This number is 
most likely higher as a number of families choose to not turn in the required paperwork are 
therefore unclassified. 13% of the student population is classified and receives special 
education services. Currently, there are six English Language Learners (ELL) enrolled which 
is up from one last year. 

A combination of extensive recruitment strategies and program services have been put in 
place to attract and retain students with disabilities, ELL, and students who are eligible for the 
FRLP. Strategies include, but are not limited to: outreach to parents and families in the 
surrounding communities, widely publicizing the lottery for such school, efforts to academically 
support these students, and enrollment policy revisions, such as employing a weighted lottery 
or enrollment preference, to increase the proportion of enrolled students from the three priority 
populations. 

The administration/school counselors conduct tours, visit feeder schools, host speakers, and 
conduct outreach to block clubs, parent groups, churches, resettlement agencies, and 
community-based and healthcare organizations. Applications are available on-line, in hard 
copy and are also translated in Spanish. Student Ambassadors participate in speaking 
engagements, feeder-school visits and radio talk shows. 

The school conducts outreach to community-based organizations via print/electronic media to 
target ELLs and students with disabilities. Applications are distributed in person to resettlement 
agencies, community-based organizations and the court-system serving at-risk students. 

The school is also a participant in the WNY Immigrant and Refugee Roundtable, hosted by the 
United Way. What we have learned via this relationship is that charters are really a choice and 
newly arrived clients need a certainty. The case managers from the four resettlement 
agencies are working with refugees newly arrived to the U.S. and that resettlement is a 90-day 
relationship by definition, the federal government closes the cases after that. As such, they 
typically enroll all families in the Buffalo Public School district because the children are 



                
              

              
                

                 
               

          

                
             

          
                 

  

            
             

       

           
             

                
           

              
             
               

    

             
               
             

               
            
                 

               
              

             
            

mandated to be in school. Refugees arrive all year so the timing isn’t conducive to charter 
applications/lotteries, and the concept of a charter – a lottery, an application – is foreign. 

That said, Health Sciences will conduct further outreach to these families once they have 
established their home in Buffalo for a period of time and have more capacity to understand 
their options. A central part of our outreach to this population is to develop small relationships 
with the community, which includes the families of the current ELL students, because word of 
mouth and trust is very powerful to the families of foreign born students. 

The International Institute of Buffalo has agreed to assist the school in terms of: (1) language 
(translating documents, planning for and using interpreters), (2) outreach, to introduce us to 
representatives of the communities (sometimes an organization, and sometimes individuals), 
(3) training staff and faculty to be culturally competent, and look at whether the school as a 
whole is culturally competent. 

In addition to the aforementioned strategies, the school has implemented a systematic 
process for evaluating recruitment and outreach strategies and program services for each of 
the three categories of students, and makes strategic improvements as needed. 

The marketing committee annually reviews student recruitment process. A student 
recruitment plan, as evidenced in meeting minutes, is updated annually to reach students, 
parents and influencers to ensure a full and diverse student enrollment. On a parallel path, 
the administration meets with student ambassadors, and various students/parents to seek 
advice on how to reach like-minded students (e.g. social media, shadow days, open house, 
diversity dinner, athletic events etc. A new student-produced video and a general video 
depicting the strengths and characteristics of the school has been completed and is part of 
multiple ongoing outreach efforts. 

The enrollment and retention targets below set by the NYSED enrollment and retention 
calculator for priority populations in the new charter term are much higher than those originally 
proposed will require the school to conduct aggressive outreach and recruitment activities in 
order to approach these numbers. The school will develop outreach strategies that take into 
account current enrollment trends, focus areas, and performance status of nearby high 
schools, and how Health Sciences is set apart from each of those schools. In addition, the 
school will market itself based on a consistent message of college and career readiness and 
individualized supports to families regardless of classifications. Health Sciences is one of the 
few non-criteria schools in the City of Buffalo that serves predominantly African American 
youth living in poverty AND has a graduation rate close to 90%. 
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Color Key Health Sciences Charter School 
Board/Principal 

Organizational Chart Director/Assistant Principal 

Management Current (2015-2016) 
Teachers/Certified Staff 

Staff/Hourly 

Contracted Services Board of Trustees 

Principal 
Executive 

Assistant 
CIO 

Director of Curriculum 

& Instruction 

Director of Finance & 

Operations 

Assistant Principal-

Student Management 

Business 

Clerk 

Guidance 

Clerk 
Receptionist 

Dean of 

Students 

Social 

Worker 

Head of 

Security 

Athletic 

Director 

Mainte-

nance 

Contracted 

Services 

Guidance 

Coaches 
Safety 

Monitors 

Gen Ed 

Teachers 

SPED 

Teachers 

Unfilled 

College & 

Career 

Coordinator Nurse 

Assistant Principal-

Instruction 

Director of Special 

Projects 

Controller 

CSE Chair 

Revised 07/05/2016
	



  

 

    

 

  

  

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

  

   

 

 

   

  

 

  

  

  

  

  

        

        

      

S M T W TH F S S M T W TH F S S M T W TH F S S M T W TH F S 

1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 1 

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 5 

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 2 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 6 

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 3 7 

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 4 8 

31 9 

S M T W TH F S S M T W TH F S 

9 13 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 18 22 

10 14 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 19 23 

11 15 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 20 24 

12 16 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 21 

13 17 29 30 31 

S M T W TH F S 

1 2 3 

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 

25 26 27 28 29 30 

JULY 

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 

28 29 30 31 25 26 27 28 29 30 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 

30 31 

S M T W TH F S S M T W TH F S 

1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 1 2 3 4 

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 

27 28 29 30 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 22 26 27 28 25 

S M T W TH F S S M T W TH F S S M T W TH F S 

1 2 3 4 25 1 30 1 2 3 4 5 6 33 38 

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 26 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 30 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 34 39 

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 27 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 35 40 

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 28 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 31 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 36 

26 27 28 29 30 31 29 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 32 28 29 30 31 37 

HEALTH SCIENCES CHARTER SCHOOL - INSTRUCTIONAL CALENDAR 

2016 - 2017 

AUGUST SEPTEMBER OCTOBER 

20 Insrtuctional Days 

NOVEMBER DECEMBER JANUARY FEBRUARY 

23 Instructional Days 13 Instructional Days 22 Instructional Days 17 Instructional Days 

18 Instructional Days 17 Instructional Days 19 Instructional Days 15 Instructional Days 

MARCH APRIL MAY JUNE 

12 Instructional Days 12 Instructional Days 21 Instructional Days 

7/11
 

8/17 - 8/18
 
8/22 - 8/25
 
8/29 - 8/31
 

9/1
 

9/2
 

9/5
 

9/6
 

10/10
 

11/7
 

11/8 & 11/9
 
11/10 

11/11 

11/24 &11/25
 

12/26 - 1/2
 

1/16
 

1/24 - 1/27
 

1/30 

2/20 - 2/24 

4/3 - 4/5 

4/6 

4/7 

4/10 - 4/17
 

5/29
 

6/14 - 6/23
 

Important Dates…. 
Summer Session Begins 

August Regents Exams 

New Teacher Boot Camp 

All Teachers Return for PD 

Freshman & Junior Return 

Sophomores & Seniors Return 

Labor Day 

All Students Back in Session 

Columbus Day 

MASH Camp #1 

Q1 Interims/ Q1 Ends 

Rating Day/ PD Day 

Veteran's Day 

Thanksgiving Recess 

Winter Recess 

MLK Day 

January Regents & Interims/Q2 Ends 

Rating Day/ PD Day 

Mid-Winter Recess 

Q3 Interims/Q3 Ends 

MASH Camp #2 

Rating Day/ PD Day 

Spring Recess 

Memorial Day 

June Regents 

24 Days Summer Session 

185 Days Academic School Year 

210 Days Total Instructional Days 
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